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Maui Community Television, Inc.

ITEM NO.1:

FY 2007 BUDGET

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.) I'd like to call to order the

6
7

8

(C.C. 06-31 and 06-49)

9

10
11

Council's Budget and Finance Committee meeting

12

for Thursday, March 30th, 2006.

13

For the record, we have In attendance

14

this morning the Vice-Chair of the Committee,

15

Mr. Hokama, as well as Members Carroll, Mateo,

16

Molina, Tavares, Kane.
Members, this mornlng we are going to

17
18

start into our grants programs, and this morning

19

we are going to go ahead and start off with the

20

Housing and Human Concerns area.

21

us the Deputy Director of the Department,

22

Mr. Herman Andaya, who will provide us with some

23

opening remarks.

We have with

24

Members, as you can see, we have many

25

people in the audience who have signed up for
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1

testimony this mornlng.

2

Budget Director, Mr. Ginoza, as well as the

3

Deputy Director, Mr. Andaya, with opening

4

remarks.

5

Deputy regarding his opening remarks, we will go

6

ahead and address those, and then we will go

7

ahead and open it up for public testimony.

10

If you have any questions to the

With that, Mr. Ginoza, good morning.

8

9

We will provide the

MR. GINOZA:

Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members, and

everyone.

11

I have submitted for your reVlew the

12

listing of all the grants that's going to be

13

discussed today, and they are on two schedules.

14

The first schedule is on the Human Concerns

15

schedule, and there's a listing for the grants

16

beginning with the OED, or the Office of

17

Economic Development.

18

So we have this morning available for

19

discussion from the Department of Housing and

20

Human Concerns, the Deputy Director, and I would

21

like to turn this over to the Deputy Andaya.

22

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Good morning, Mr. Andaya, and if you can

23
24

introduce the young lady sitting next to you as

25

well, please.
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1

MR. ANDAYA:

6

Yes, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, Mr. Chair

2

and Council Members.

Director Alice Lee is

3

currently out of State, so I have been asked to

4

represent the Department.
In the 2007 Budget, we have a few grants

5
6

that are new as well as a number of existing

7

grants that were either increased or decreased.

8

First of all, I would like to thank the Council

9

for their continued support of this Department.

10

Over the years, you have allowed this Department

11

to maintain our present level of service, and we

12

are indeed thankful for your support in past

13

budget cycles.
I would like to also take this

14
15

opportunity to publicly commend the employees of

16

our Department for all of their hard work.

17

have had the pleasure of working with truly

18

dedicated employees who will often go beyond the

19

call of duty to provide services to our

20

community_

I

I have with me today some of our

21
22

division heads, who will be available to answer

23

your questions.

24

Tanaka from Kaunoa Senior Services, as well as

25

Edwin Okubo, from the Housing Division.

In the gallerYI we have Robin
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1

beside me is Wendy Stebbins, who is the acting

2

Grants Management Administrator for the County,

3

who is also available to answer any of your

4

questions.
That's all I have for now, Mr. Chair.

5

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, any questions or

7

comments before we open it up for public

8

testimony?
Hearing none, good morning to those of

9
10

you who are in the gallery this morning.

We are

11

live on Akaku, so we just ask that you be aware

12

of that, that you are on TV.

13

approximately 30 people signed up to testify,

14

and so we will be setting the ground rules as

15

follows:

16

podium here, that mic is adjustable, so adjust

17

it to your comfort level, but we need you to

18

speak into that mic.

We have

First, when you do come up to the

First thing you do is state your name

19
20

for the record, and if you represent an

21

organization, we would like to know that as

22

well.

23

opportunity and therefore, everybody will have

24

three minutes in their testimony, and then we

25

will ask you to conclude your remarks.

We are going to provide everybody equal
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If you continue after that, we are going

1

2

to politely ask you to conclude your remarks

3

again, and if you continue, we are going to

4

actually just stop you.
So please, we ask you to respect that.

5

6

Everybody is given the fair shot.

Nobody is

7

going to get any more time or any less time.

8

will give you the same time.

9

remain there.

We

And we want you to

Let us know that you are done,

10

and then we will ask if any Members have

11

questions of your testimony.

12

then please remain, and we will try to get your

13

question

14

Members.

And if they do,

your responses to questions from the

With that, I have already heard some

15
16

people doing it, so I will ask everybody else,

17

if you have a cell phone or a pager, if you can

18

please turn it to the off or to the silent mode

19

so that we can avoid any unnecessary

20

distractions to the meeting this morning.
First person signed up to testify is

21
22

Mr. Clyde Sakamoto, and he will be followed by

23

Nancy Johnson.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .

24

25

MR. SAKAMOTO:

Aloha.

Good morning, Chair Kane and

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 3/30/06

1

9

Members of the County Council.
I am Clyde Sakamoto, Chancellor of Maui

2
3

Community College! part of the University of

4

Hawaii system.
We are grateful for the opportunity to

5

6

speak in behalf of our community and college

7

aspirations to improve and expand opportunities

8

for students and residents in Maui Nui.

9

here specifically to testify on behalf of the

I am

10

County grant related to Maui Community College

11

and our expansion and support.
Experiencing rapid and population growth

12
13

over the last 20 years and expecting continued

14

population growth and complexity! our residents

15

expressed their action priorities in Focus Maui

16

Nui and its survey.

17

quality on island education! including higher

18

education, as the number one

19

community-identified priority on all three

20

islands.

The survey lists access to

Quote, liTo foster the development of the

21
22

young people, to create more economic

23

opportunities down the road! and to strengthen

24

the ability of local residents to take control

25

over the islands' future, the first priority
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1

to improve education.

Maui Nui must ensure its

2

schools are performing and that young people are

3

being prepared for the challenges ahead.

4

the creation of the infrastructure and

5

innovation to bring out K-12 reform is of utmost

6

importance, it is also essential to have a

7

public university with strong academic programs,

8

particularly in the areas for research and job

9

creation," end quote.

While

Although it's spring break, joining us

10
11

this morning are members of our student

12

population, our faculty and staff, and I'd like

13

you all to sort of wave.

Great.

These are faculty and staff who support

14
15

our County's contribution to meeting our

16

community's future through higher education and

17

access to some of the better compensated

18

positions in Maui Nui.

19

details of this proposal's need and promise for

20

the future.

They will relate the

The proposal before you enlists Council

21
22

leadership to break new ground t

to elevate Maui

23

Nui's ability to address health, nursing,

24

teacher preparation, and social worker

25

shortages.

The proposal begins with repairing
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1

the pipeline of our students from high schools

2

into our community college.

3

specifically asks for $2 million of County

4

resources to provide a firm base of two-year

5

instructional resources to permit 15 percent

6

more students to enter the higher education

7

pipeline.

8

programs, partnerships are being forged with the

9

UH Manoa School of Nursing, College of

The proposal

To expand student access to four-year

10

Education, School of Social Work, Institute for

11

Astronomy, College of Natural Sciences, as well

12

as UH West Oahu and UH Hilo.
To expand student access to -- and to

13

to approach high-demand baccalaureate

14

demand

15

programs, agreements with other UH institutions

16

are being developed to permit annual student

17

admissions with faculty members based on Maui.

18

MS. REVELS:

Three minutes.

19

MR. SAKAMOTO:

We also assist them to introduce

20

applied research capability and eventually

21

migrate these programs over to MCC under a

22

Maui-based UH institutional umbrella.
This County grant will then begin the

23
24

four-year transition by adding faculty to meet

25

high-demand programs that will eventually
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1

transform MCC into a four-year institution over

2

a four- to five-year period.
We understand that funding in higher

3

4

education is primarily a State responsibility.

5

We also know and appreciate the County Council's

6

leadership in having supported our nursing,

7

student housing, marine options, cooperative

8

education, and most recently our oral care

9

center program, that's provided over 44 students

10

the ability to address over 7200 of our Maui

11

County residents support for oral services.
So with your support, we can do a

12
13

tremendous amount.

14

MS. REVELS:

15

MR. SAKAMOTO:

16

Four minutes.
I would like to mention that the

college wishes to acknowledge --

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

MR. SAKAMOTO:

Okay.
-- a $35,000 Islands of the World

19

proposal that will bring researchers from all

20

over the world to the County.

21
22
23

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Sakamoto

I

I need you to conclude

your remarks, please.
MR. SAKAMOTO:

I would be happy to.

24

These requests for County support seek

25

to recover a sense of well-being in our island
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1

communities and to steward our resources and

2

future of Maui Nui through learning.

3

Specifically, the focus of the requested

4

2 million will address workforce and economic

5

development and diversification needs.

6

look forward to responding to any questions that

7

you might have and to collaborating with you to

8

serve our people in Maui Nui.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Mahalo.

Thank you! Mr. Sakamoto.

10

Members! questions?

11

Mr. Mateo.

12

And we

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman! thank you very much.

Good morning! Mr. Sakamoto.

13

14

MR. SAKAMOTO:

Good morning.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

The $2 million request that MCC

have before the Council this morning! is

16

lS

17

this a one-shot deal?

18

you are looking at getting $2 million for this

19

one-year period?

20

also reference the four-year transition period.

21

So is it like $2 million for the next four

22

years?

23

intent?

24
25

-

MR. SAKAMOTO:

Is this something that

Because the

$2 million a year?

- it also -- you

Or what is the

We! frankly, need to get started.

If

we are going to be pursuing this direction, it
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1

is going to be a mUlti-year kind of process, and

2

so we want to be realistic about it.

3

mean that the first year we will invest in the

4

kinds of planning, relationship development,

5

setting of agreements in place to allow

6

everything to unfold.

It will

But realistically, to create a four-year

7
8

institution, it is going to require a

9

combination of both State and potentially County

10

resources in order to fulfill and realize the

11

full potential of a four-year institution.

12

yes.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So,

And would you have an idea of

14

the commitment that the County is going to be

15

making with

16

this point?

17
18

19
20

21

MR. SAKAMOTO:

- with the actual $2 million at

In terms of the kinds of programs that

it would be supporting?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

In terms of how many years, how

many years is this commitment for?
MR. SAKAMOTO:

Well t we are hoping -- we are hoping

22

for a three- to four-year commitment.

23

understand that it's not possible for the County

24

to commit beyond one year at a time.

25

we are hoping to do is to report back to you on
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1

a timely basis as to our progress.

We, as you

2

have -- will see by our proposal, have included

3

information about what the State support will

4

look like.

5

support that we are hoping for,

6

us to accelerate, hopefully, our -- our progress

7

In this direction.

And so, given the amount of State
that will allow

The first priority, of course, is to

8
9

shore up the foundation of our community college

10

two year program so that that pipeline is solid,

11

strong, and a foundation that will allow us to

12

expand systematically.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

And, Mr. Sakamoto,

14

finally, with the inclusion of the new programs

15

and the new degrees that the college will be

16

offering, can you tell me what the benefit is

17

for your satellite colleges, like Molokai and

18

the Lanai program as well?

19

MR. SAKAMOTO:

Thank you.

The benefits for our

20

outreach areas, we have some specific positions

21

that we have requested for our outreach

22

communities, and what we intend to do is to

23

allow students from Molokai, Lanai, and Hana the

24

kind of support that's going to be required for

25

them to be successful in those programs that
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1

have high math, science demands, like nursing,

2

to have the kinds of college preparatory skills

3

in hand so that they might enter the college

4

college-ready.
And so our commitment to our

5
6

accommodation of distance education as well as

7

on-site kinds of staffing and facilities are

8

proposed to create not simply the pipeline, but

9

support student success.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Mr. Sakamoto.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

11

12

Okay.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

13

Members, questions for Mr. Sakamoto?

14

Mr. Molina.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Good morning, Mr. Sakamoto.

16

17

MR. SAKAMOTO:

Good morning.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Just following up on Member

19

Mateo's questions, we -

we've -- I don't know

20

about the other Council Members! but we did

21

receive -- our office received an e-mail from a

22

staff member, I guess, just highlighting

23

concerns currently with the two-year program

24

versus expanding into a four-year university.

25

Can you share with us how you plan to
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1

deal with the current concerns at the college as

2

well, in lieu of the four-year request?

3

MR. SAKAMOTO:

Yes, thank you for airing that.
We have, frankly, had some serious

4
5

challenges on the campus.

Our electricity

6

resources have not kept up with our electricity

7

costs.

8

year's not over -- that we were approaching a

9

minimum of about $785,000 worth of shortages,

This year, we estimated that -- and the

10

which required us to ask our faculty to

11

constrain all of the kinds of spending.

12

dropped down a number of classes.

13

have helped out in terms of being in larger

14

class sizes.

15

things, including not having the kinds of

16

material supplies available that we would

17

normally have.

18

year.

We

Our students

We have done a whole range of

And so this has been a difficult

I believe that our Legislators

19
20

understand that, and they are attempting to help

21

us in this Legislative session.

22

looking forward to having some of our

23

electricity resources restored.

24

will only know at the end of the seSSlon.

25

it is -

So we are

How much, we

it has been a very serious challenge
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18

for us.
We have attempted to seek other kinds of

2

3

solutions and have proposed, as you know, some

4

alternate energy kinds of solutions, and they

5

have yet to materialize, but we are committed to

6

solving those kinds of issues and seek County

7

Council support in shoring up this groundwork

8

even as it is a bit unsteady in order to allow

9

us to move ahead.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

14
15

16

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

11

12

Okay.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Any further questions?

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, thank you very much for

being here, Clyde.
One of the questions, and of course,

17

this has been posed previously to us when the

18

request was made last year for the funding, and

19

this is in regard to, I guess, a cut that might

20

potentially come as a result of the County

21

putting in $2 million, and then the Legislature

22

recognizing that we have made a contribution,

23

and therefore cutting your budget by a

24

proportionate amount, and I just would

25

appreciate if you could address that particular
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1

concern.

2

MR. SAKAMOTO:

I have talked to a number of our Maui

3

Legislators, and they didn't seem to have an

4

issue with it.

5

that it might be.

6

whether or not he was -

7

secondhand, whether it was said in fun, or you

8

know, as kind of a chiding remark, or whether he

9

was serious.

However, I did hear from one
And so, I wasn't clear on
because I heard it

So I will find that out.

10

But it strikes me that the Legislators

11

understand how serious our challenges are with

12

respect to the nursing shortage, teacher

13

preparation, with respect to all of our social

14

issues, and would be, I think, ultimately

15

persuaded that any resources that could

16

contribute to addressing these issues would be

17

welcome.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you.

And one of the

19

things that I -- you know

20

discussed this yet in Committee, but one of the

21

things that I was considering to put within

22

let's say, the budget request would be a proviso

23

that would require, you know, perhaps a

24

matching, you know, from the State Legislature.

25

Because if we are indeed recognizing that

l

and we haven't
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1

economic development will be impaired if we

2

don't have a four-year universitYt if we don't

3

have that t I think that the Legislature also

4

needs to recognize that Maui is a huge economic

5

engine that's contributing to the State coffers

6

as well.

7

moneYt would they be willing to match it?
And so would you have any objection if

8
9

So if we are willing to put forth that

we were to insert some type of a proviso that

10

would say we would match dollar for dollar what

11

the State does up to this particular level t or

12

would that be problematic for you?

13

MR. SAKAMOTO:

Wellt I am thinking about how the

14

county Council in the past challenged the

15

university to come up with the matching

16

resources.

17

Center, where for,

18

$200,000 was challenged, was used as challenge

19

for the University of Hawaii, and it helped us

20

establish our University Center.

21

some precedent for challenging the university.

22

And perhaps it might be fashioned in that way,

23

so that we could then present it to our State

24

legislative colleagues and seek that kind of

25

support.

And this was related to a University
I think, a three year period,

And so we have

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 3/30/06
1

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I really appreciate it

2

because I think that's one way that we might

3

basically try to address the concerns that have

4

been raised about funds being cut, whereas,

5

if -- this is matching.

6

your input, and thank you very much for your

7

work.

8

MR. SAKAMOTO:

9

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Any more questions?
Mr. Pontanilla.

10

11

But I really appreciate

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Good morning, Mr. Sakamoto.

12
13

MR. SAKAMOTO:

Good morning.

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I just was thumbing

15

through your handout over here, and on page 12,

16

the last paragraph, it says here that the

17

proposed County grant also assumes that the

18

college will match $1 million of the $2 million

19

in trying to get some new State or Federal

20

resources.

21

MR. SAKAMOTO:

Can you explain?
We have -- we have been fairly

22

successful in the past in applying for Federal

23

resources.

24

range of things, among Federal, State, private

25

resources, to identify new resources that would

We are hopeful of doing a whole
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1

become available to support the kinds of

2

directions that we have identified.

3

would pledge to the County of Maui that we would

4

be able to contribute a million dollars In terms

5

of matching on our own.

And so we

6

And that's why I mentioned the

7

institutional side of the equation because we

8

feel that -- we have been very aggressive in

9

terms of grants and have had fairly good

10

success/ as I mentioned/ 49 million from the

11

year 2000.

12

that we would be able to fulfill that one

13

million dollar kind of matching requirement/ and

14

we/ I think/ targeted the third quarter/ that we

15

would have to create and have these resources

16

available and identified by the end of the third

17

quarter of the following year.

18

are some of the details that we intend to

19

pursue.

20

And so this gives us some confidence

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So yes, those

Thank you.

I know on an

21

annual basis I get this phone call, you know, to

22

support the college/ and you know, is that part

23

of the fundraising that you are talking about,

24

to match the million dollars?

25

MR. SAKAMOTO:

(Laughter.)

Well/ we appreciate your generosity.
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1

It's -- it's very meaningful to us, and the

2

Council has been a tremendous support of higher

3

education in the past, and we are grateful for

4

that, and would look forward to continuing

5

support and growing support to essentially

6

provide our young people futures within Maui

7

County to allow them to sustain themselves and

8

their families.

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

10

11

Thank you.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

12

Any further questions from the body?

13

Mr. Sakamoto, if you could, please, I

14

have done a brief review of -

15

and I thank you for that.

16

unless you can direct me to, I didn't see a

17

specific

18

the $2 million will be spent.

19

you if you can provide in writing to the

20

Committee a specific breakdown on how the

21

$2 million is going to be applied, first, if you

22

can do that for us.

23
24

25

MR. SAKAMOTO:

of your handout,

I didn't see, and

- like a pro forma breakdown of how
And so I will ask

Yes, it's actually on the last few

pages of the grant.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So we will take a look at that,
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1

and if there's anything more that we need, I

2

will make sure that staff gets some written

3

communication to you for that information.

4

MR. SAKAMOTO:

5

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you very much.
The other question is, I notice on -- I

6

note on page 4 that, in the program description,

7

in the third paragraph, you talk about over the

8

next six to eight years, the college plans to

9

develop its capacity through the addition of

10

baccalaureate degrees.

If you can also provide

11

a chart of the -

12

looking for from the County with respects to

13

ongoing support, and it dovetails off of

14

Mr. Mateo's question.

15

multi year?

what commitment you are

Is this a single year,

We would like to understand what we are

16

17

getting into because in your oral response three

18

to four years versus six to eight years, and if

19

we make a commitment, we want to make sure that

20

we know where the end of the tunnel is.

21

you can

22

us, provide some comment there, and break it

23

down as to how that money is going to be

24

utilized.

So if

please, within your written response to

l

There's also concerns, I think The Maui

25
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1

News in their editorial pointed out some

2

components of accountability, and if we're

3

giving the State the money, you know, how are we

4

going to be able to hold you folks accountable

5

to something that we have no jurisdiction over.

6

And this is a question that was asked of you

7

last year.

8

with some written response to that as well.

So I hope that you can provide us

9

MR. SAKAMOTO:

10

in the -

11

But we very specifically indicated how we would

12

be accountable, by providing specific kinds of

13

reports, by identifying percentages of student

14

increase.

15

more detail, which we would be pleased to

16

provide, and we will be happy to respond to all

17

of the questions that you have.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Right.

And that's -- that's partially

in the handout.

You may require more.

But you may want more information and

Thank you.
Finally, the other question I would

19
20

have, that if you can please provide in writing

21

would be the preference, is that besides your

22

electrical -- unanticipated electrical costs,

23

you are faced with additional maintenance

24

requirements and building upkeep.

25

think it's important for this body and the
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1

County to understand what commitment the State,

2

who is the jurisdictional authority of your

3

facilities, to find out what kind of commitment

4

they are making to the upkeep.
And I ask that question because I

5

6

believe it's prudent for us to understand what

7

commitment is being made by them before we jump

8

in and start covering costs that are

9

unanticipated and therefore redirected to

10

something that we did not agree to.
So if you can provide some breakdown as

11

12

to what the commitment is from the State

13

Legislature and the Governor's office, we would

14

appreciate a timely response to that.

15

MR. SAKAMOTO:

16

CHAIR KANE:

Be happy to do that.
Thank you.

17

Members, any further questions?

18

Hearing none, Mr. Sakamoto, thank you

19

for your testimony.

20

MR. SAKAMOTO:

21

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
And members of the publicI let me

22

clarify.

Three minutes, we will provide you

23

with an additional minute to conclude your

24

comments, and at four minutes, that's when I

25

will start jumping in to ask you conclude.
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we appreciate your cooperation with that.
Good morning, Ms. Johnson, and following

2

3

4

Ms. Johnson is Scott Oshita.
MS. JOHNSON:

Good morning.

I am Nancy Johnson.

I

5

am the Director of the Allied Health Department

6

at Maui Community College.

7

nursing on Maui for about 23 years.
I appreciate the opportunity to tell you

8
9

I have been teaching

about a need that we have on Maui, a need -- an

10

infrastructure need, and I know that

11

infrastructure is something you address in your

12

Council.

13

care infrastructure will impact you or your

14

family this year, perhaps even this week.

I am certain that the lack of health

Maui's fortunate to have a strong and

15
16

successful nursing program, and we have many

17

applicants to our program, Maui residents who

18

want to create a successful career caring for

19

others, providing for their families, and

20

staying on Maui.

21

twice as many qualified nursing students as we

22

are able to take.

23

community needs more nurses.

At the same time, the

I know that you have been involved in

24
25

Each year we turn away about

discussions of new health care facilities on
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1

Maui, and I am certain those facilities will be

2

built.

3

be built.

4

however, I know there's going to be more

5

hospital beds.

6

lS a hospital bed without a nurse to provide

7

care for the patient that's in that bed?

I won't answer that question;

The question is what is -- good

If we expand the number of beds or if we

8

9

I am not sure where or where they should

double the number of beds on Maui, there is no

10

way that we are going to have adequate nurses to

11

supply the needs.
I have glven you some information from

12
13

The Maui News, from the Hawaii Center on

14

Nursing, and from the Hawaii Pacific Business

15

News, all outlining the -- the nursing shortage

16

as it exists now, and the significant shortage

17

we are going to have by 2010 and 2020.
In -- 35 years ago, the County helped

18
19

MCC start the nursing program, and I am here to

20

ask you for that help again/ the help to meet

21

this need in the community.
As important as you and your family

22
23

members are, we also have a lot of visitors on

24

Maui.

25

Memorial Hospital are visitors.

Forty percent of the patients at Maui
If you knew a
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1

destination would requlre you -- if you knew you

2

were going to travel to a destination where you

3

would be held in the emergency room for 24 hours

4

because there were no beds, you might look for

5

another destination.

6

few public discussions of some of our

7

infrastructure needs before it's going to affect

8

the tourism industry.

9

help us address this need.

10

CHAIR KANE:

It's only going to take a

So I am asking you to

Thank you, Ms. Johnson.

11

Members, questions?

12

Ms. Johnson.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, thank you very much for

14

being here.

One of the things that I have read,

15

and I have also been aware of, is the fact that

16

you have been -- because I guess you don't have

17

enough teachers, you have been forced to turn

18

away many nursing student applications or

19

applicants.
How would the money that is being

20
21

channeled into Maui Community College, if we do

22

allocate the money for the four-year program,

23

how would that actually help to address that

24

specific problem, or would that not be able to

25

address that problem?
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MS. JOHNSON:

Well, it is true that faculty

2

recruitment is difficult, partly because we

3

require a nurse with a master's degree to

4

maintain our accreditation.

5

I have five master's applicants for positions at

6

the college.

7

some positions possibly in the Legislature.

8

One of the things we have asked the

9

Currently, though,

We are recruiting because we have

university for is equity in faculty salaries so

10

that our nursing faculty can make as much as our

11

new graduate nurses.

I believe we will be able to recruit the

12

13
14

(Laughter.)

faculty.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And that this money

15

would help that endeavor; is that -- is that

16

correct?

17

MS. JOHNSON:

Well, right now we have funding for

18

13.5 positions.

That's the same funding we have

19

had since 1989.

That's when our program was

20

doubled.
I think you realize that the needs on

21
22

Maui have increased tremendously since 1989, and

23

we haven't been able to increase the number of

24

nurses because we don't have funding for faculty

25

positions.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you very much.

Any further questions?
Ms. Johnson, I have a question for you,

3

4

Okay.

tying into Ms. Johnson's question.
Are you anticipating that this

5

- part

6

of this $2 million is going to go towards paying

7

for additional positions and covering their

8

salary and wages?

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

10
11

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

That is your understanding of the

request?

12

MS. JOHNSON:

Yes.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you very much.

14

Any further questions, Members?

15

Hearing none, thank you.

16

Scott Oshita, followed by Suzette

17
18

Robinson.
MR. OSHITA:

Hi.

Good morning, Council.

19

here -- my name

20

support the Lokahi Pacific Blue Hawaii building

21

project, and I am speaking in the area of the

22

commercial kitchen incubator program side of

23

that project, and I am also speaking as a

24

one of the participants that will be using that

25

project.

lS

Scott Oshita.

I am

I am here to
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This project will provide a lot of

1

2

opportunities within, for the residents of Maui

3

who have very limited resources by -- by giving

4

residents opportunities to produce their

5

their product, market their product, otherwise

6

that they could not do.
Another thing that this -- this program

7
8

will do is like in -- on the Big Island and --

9

and Oahu, they also have similar programs like

10

this where the incubator programs, where you

11

have small businesses get spawned from these

12

programs.

13

community at the same time, and you know, this

14

lS

-

17

this is just good for the community.
And I'm going to keep mines really

15
16

And you know, it also helps the

short.
To sum it all up, you know, right now, I

18

notice there's a lot of people from out of

19

island, from out of the State, coming into

20

Hawaii starting new businesses, especially food

21

businesses.

22

level the playing field for us here on Maui.

23

And you know, it really doesn't

What this -- what this commercial

24

kitchen incubator program will do is it will

25

somewhat level the playing field for some of us
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residents on Maui.
And you know, that's all I have to say.

2
3

4

Is there any questions?
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Oshita.
Members, any questions for our

5

6

testifier?
Hearing none, thank you for your

7

8

testimony this morning.
Suzette Robinson followed by Warren

9
10

11

Watanabe.
MS. ROBINSON:

Good morning.

Thank you, Chairman

12

Kane and Council Members, for giving me the

13

opportunity to talk to you about the proposal to

14

support MCC with County funds.
My name is Suzette Robinson.

15

I am the

16

Interim Assistant Dean of Instruction as well as

17

the Interim Director of the Continuing Education

18

Program at MCC.
Flo wiger, who is MCC's Vice Chancellor

19
20

for Academic Affairs, has a family emergency

21

lS

22

we have spoken and she's asked me to express

23

some of the ideas that she has regarding this

24

proposal.

-

and is now flying to Minnesota; however,

She is supportive of the request and has

25
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1

outlined a number of reasons.

The first one is

2

what we call the equal opportunities reason.

3

a -- as a counselor herself, she is very aware

4

of the fact that people need to give choices,

5

and if someone chooses to leave the island to

6

pursue higher education, we would be very

7

supportive of that; however, at the same time,

8

if someone needs to or wants to remain on

9

island, we need to have the people of Maui

As

10

County to have the opportunity to stay here, to

11

have a path to post-secondary education.

12

question

lS

not what is right or wrong.

13

question

lS

just make sure people have options.

The
The

Another reason is what we call the brain

14
15

drain.

It's something that we have had here on

16

Maui for a number of years, where many of our

17

young people choose to go to college off island,

18

and as many of you know, they eventually find

19

jobs there, marry, raise families, and come back

20

only when parents, like me or my family, you

21

know, they come back when parents need help.

22

But for the most part, their productive

23

professional years have been spent away from the

24

island.
The three programs that we propose here,

25
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1

health care, education, and social work, provide

2

living wages for our people.

3

to have our -

4

level positions.

5

choices for their educational training to

6

prepare them for occupations that provide for

7

their families with income that will support

8

their life here on Maui.

We cannot afford

people on Maui limited to entry
Again, people need to have

Consistency in the workforce.

9

The term

10

home grown is descriptive in its connotation

11

that people who are born and raised here will

12

probably stay here for most of their

13

professional life.

14

ensures continuity and consistency allowing our

15

time and energy to be spent not on -- not on

16

recruitment, but on retention of our employees.
And finally,

17

This kind of solid workforce

leveling the playing field.

18

Let me be clear that these reasons that I

19

mentioned earlier are not meant to limit access

20

to those who wish to come to Maui, live and work

21

here, but these are reasons meant to express the

22

desire to give Maui residents the choices that

23

others living in other parts of the State and

24

the Mainland have to access higher education

25

opportunities.
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Thank you for giving me this time to

1
2

speak to this proposal.
Are there any questions?

3

4

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you/ Ms. Robinson.

5

Members?

6

Hearing none r thank you very much for

7

your testimony.
Warren Watanabe to be followed by

8
9

10

Laycie-Ann Tobosa.
MR. WATANABE:

Good morning, Chairman Kane, Members

11

of the Committee.

12

President of the Maui County Farm Bureau.

13

I

My name is Warren Watanabe,

you did receive my written

14

testimony at the Pukalani hearing, but I wanted

15

to reiterate our support and -- and our request

16

for Maui County Farm Bureau through the Office

17

of Economic Development.
You know, we all express interest in

18
19

preserving agriculture, and I think, you know,

20

the County of Maui and the State of Hawaii

21

really needs to step up to the plate and really

22

provide that support.

23

process, as you well are aware, of designating

24

important agricultural lands.

25

written testimony, without continuous support

We are going through the

And again, in my
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1

that we have received in the past and we hope to

2

continue to receive, agriculture would not

3

continue In this -- in this County and this

4

State.

5

know, to diversify our economy, that this

6

continue.

And I think it's important that, you

Our membership does consist of small

7
8

farmers and part-timers, and we also have our

9

major producers in -- in Maui County, including

10

HC&S.

So we have a broad range.

11

types of agriculture.

12

to keeping Hawaii successful in ago

13

everybody to be on the same page.

And

We support all

r think that is a key
We need

r also request your support for the

14
15

grant request for CTAHR, for our -- and to the

16

Maui Invasive Species Committee for invasive

17

species.

18

our ag specialist in the County of Maui through

19

the Office of Economic Development.

20

CHAIR KANE:

And also for the budget request for

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Watanabe.

21

Members, any questions?

22

Hearing none, thank you for your

23

testimony.
Laycie-Ann Tobosa, followed by Jocelyn

24

25

Perreira.
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Good morning.

My name is Laycie-Ann

2

Tobosa.

3

student of Maui Community College.

4

to be a student in MCC's first four-year degree

5

program, ABIT, Applied Business and Information

6

Technology.

7

truly feel that I am fortunate to be here today

8

and not on another island or on the Mainland.

And I come before you today as a
I am blessed

I use the term blessed because I

It has always been my goal to pursue

9
10

higher education and to obtain a bachelor's

11

degree.

12

fall of 2003, the only way I saw myself

13

achieving that goal was to move away or take

14

distance courses.

15

school had plans to go to the

16

on the Mainland to get away from home for a

17

little bit, and I had plans to do the same.

18

as time came closer to start applying, I was

19

faced with the reality that I didn't have money

20

nor the support to take on such an endeavor.

When I first enrolled in MCC in the

Many of my friends in high
go to college

But

So my Plan B was to attend MCC, get my

21
22

associate's degree, and transfer to Oahu to work

23

on getting my bachelor's degree there.

24

again, my financial realities kept me here on

25

Maui.
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My only other option was to get my

1

2

degree through the University of Hawaii Center.

3

I began my studies in liberal arts in hopes to

4

transfer into West Oahu's business

5

administration program, and I had planned to

6

take distance learning courses.

7

learned best when in the classroom, I had to

8

sacrifice that in order to get my degree because

9

MCC didn't have a bachelor's degree program for

10

Even though I

me.
With the grace of God came talk of a

11

12

four-year program at MCC, ABIT.

Even though the

13

program was still being reviewed, I jumped on

14

the bandwagon and held on for the ride.

15

Students began to roll in asking questions about

16

this new program, and enrollment in the program

17

had been increasing and is -- and it is because

18

MCC needs to offer these types of programs.

19

Students need four-year degree programs at MCC.
If the ABIT Program had not come around,

20
21

I may have not continued pursuing my education

22

because it would be too hard for me to learn

23

through distance courses.

24

the ABIT Program and am extremely lucky

25

that -- that MCC offers a degree for me.

I am honored to be in
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1

But what about students in situations

2

that want a degree in elementary education or

3

social service?

4

them.

5

here, students are forced to go elsewhere.

6

are forced to go to Oahu.

7

to the Mainland.

8

their family and their community.

MCC doesn't have a degree for

After finishing their associate's degree
They

They are forced to go

They are forced away from

We are educating students on Maui that

9
10

may not come back here after they relocate.

We

11

are educating students that might forget about

12

the community that they left behind because they

13

are now in a place -- excuse me -- where their

14

education is supported.
We want to keep our people here on Maui.

15
16

We don't want to send them away.

We don't want

17

to send them away from their family and their

18

friends in Hawaii.

19

are family.

20

care of our people.

We call ourselves ohana.

And we need to take care -

We

take

I believe that the future of our

21
22

students, of our people of Maui County, lie in

23

the four-year degree programs at Maui Community

24

College.

25

opportunity?

If not now, when will be our next
I humbly ask for your support, but
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1

not only for myself and my family, but for the

2

families of Maui Nui.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Tobosa.

4

Members, questions?

5

Hearing none, thank you for your

6

testimony this morning.
Jocelyn Perreira, followed by Patricia

7

8

9

Adams.
MS. PERREIRA:

Good morning, Council Chair Kane,

10

Council Members, Council Chair of the Council,

11

Hokama.

12

here.

13

Executive Director of the Wailuku Main Street

14

Association, and the Tri-Isle Main Street

15

Program Resource Center, Program Coordinator.

Thank you for this opportunity to be
My name is Jocelyn Perreira.

I am the

For many years, an important partnership

16

17

has been forged between the Tri-Isle Resource

18

Center and the County.

19

wisely in this comprehensive community-based

20

program that has generated many tangible and as

21

well as unquantifiable results.

22

we have been good stewards of government and

23

private-sector funding, and our 2004 audit once

24

again clearly shows this.

The County has invested

Over the years,

The program utilizes -- provides

25
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1

individual strategies to our distinct towns,

2

actively engaged in economic revitalization and

3

preservation activities.

4

continued to provide the impetus for a

5

well thought-out, balanced approach to

6

addressing longstanding community concerns.

7

efforts are geared to long-term solutions rather

8

than quick fix or Band-Aid responses which tend

9

not to solve underlying problems and delay final

10

Main Street has

Our

resolution.
Since the program's inception, there

11

12

have been notable economic and physical

13

improvements due to our projects and initiatives

14

in many of Maui's small towns.

15

able, with only a small staff serving all towns,

16

to solicit significant private sector

17

contributions and the help of hundreds of

18

volunteers that donate valuable professional

19

services for our Main Street projects ln

20

partnership with County as well.

Main Street is

These efforts include independent design

21
22

professional comments on public infrastructure

23

and private building improvements, business

24

retention, enhancement, and recruitment

25

programs, promotional or special events, and
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program development.
We believe that Main Street truly

2

3

represents and stands up for the grass roots

4

segment of our communities.

5

towns face massive development and population

6

growth that threatens to tear out the heart of

7

their traditional character.

8

sugar and pineapple industries and the onslaught

9

of the mega retailers have further exacerbated

10

Many of our small

The decline of the

the problem.
A comprehensive strategy of smart

11

12

planning, smart growth is necessary to provide

13

needed balance that keeps these towns

14

economically viable and preserves their sense of

15

place.

16

professionals of these communities are counting

17

on your support to help their towns retain a

18

sense of place in balance with economic

19

viability.

20

the grass-roots community to carefully plan for

21

a secure future.

Long-time residents, merchants,

This can only be done by engaging

We thank you all for your past support

22

23

of the program, humbly ask you to look with

24

favor upon one of Hawaii's very best

25

community-based economic development programs,
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1

the only such program which resides in the

2

context of preservation of our history, culture,

3

lifestyle, and sense of place.
Thank you for your time and effort.

4

I

5

have left with the Council staff a packet with

6

detailed information on the program in the

7

format that you are accustomed to from the

8

departments, including program charts.

9

you know about the program structure, it

So that

10

outlines the program mission statements and

11

detailed information on expenses, cost-benefit

12

ratios, projected project breakdowns, and

13

Tri-Isle per rata funding.
In the packet also is included a list of

14
15

accomplishments for each of the towns, and

16

letters of -- requesting support from each of

17

the towns, giving you their detailed

18

experiences

19

Project requests that each towns have

20

highlighted, and -

21

specifically is Paia, Makawao, Haiku, and we

22

have a Wailuku Capital Improvement Project

23

request as we have done for many -- almost 20

24

years now.

I

along with Capital Improvement

and in that -- this packet

We hope that this will help you in your

25
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1

deliberations on not only to support our

2

program, but also to support the needed

3

improvements that are needed in these small

4

towns.
I would like to thank you on behalf of

5

6

these small town boards that have come to visit

7

with you and had a meaningful dialogue and

8

exchange.

9

very looking forward to stepping up to the plate

They found it very helpful, and are

10

to work together with you on formulating

11

position statements on issues of concern in

12

their communities as well.

13

meeting with you, as you know, in their

14

respective district, and they really thank you

15

for your hard work and effort on behalf of these

16

small towns.

17

opportunity.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Each of them are

Thank you very much for this

Thank you, Ms. Perreira.

19

Members, any questions?

20

Hearing none, thank you very much for

21

your testimony.

22

MS. PERREIRA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

25

Thank you.
Patricia Adams.

Ms. Adams will be

followed by Harold Keyser.
MS. ADAMS:

Good mornlng.

I am happy to be here this
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1

morning.

And I would like to thank all of you

2

for your past assistance to Maui Community

3

College, and to ask you for more assistance.

4

At Maui Community College -- well, I

5

better tell you, I am an English teacher, and I

6

am also the Department Chair for the Career and

7

Technical Education, Vocational Technical

8

Department.

9

entire college.

So I have interest across the

At Maui Community College, we have a

10
11

mission statement.

It is the driver for

12

everything that we do there.

13

together, the entire faculty and staff put it

14

together, over a long period of months and many

15

discussions.

16

it's very brief and to the point, and I would

17

like to tell you what it is this morning.

We put it

We spent a lot of time on it, but

18

Maui Community College is a

19

learning-centered institution that provides

20

affordable, high-quality credit and non credit

21

educational opportunities to a diverse community

22

of lifelong learners.
We are different from the rest of the

23
24

State.

Our community of lifelong learners is on

25

Maui, Molokai, Lanai, and in Kihei, and Hana,
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1

and now in West Maui.

I don't think the State

2

understands this, but you do.
The educational needs of the people in

3
4

all of these areas are growing and we need to

5

meet those needs.

6

assistance to do this.

7

your assistance in carrying out our mission

8

statement.

9
10

CHAIR KANE:

I am asking you for your
And I am asking you for

Thank you.

Thank you, ma'am.

If you can state your

name for the record, please.

11

MS. ADAMS:

12

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, I am Patricia Adams.
Thank you, Ms. Adams.

13

Members, any questions?

14

Hearing none, thank you for your

15

testimony this morning.

16

MS. ADAMS:

Thank you.

17

CHAIR KANE:

Harold Keyser followed by Jo-Ann Ridao.

18

MR. KEYSER:

Thank you, Chairman Kane.

Good morning,

19

Council Members, Committee Members.

My name is

20

Harold Keyser.

21

Administrator for the College of Tropical

22

Agriculture and Human Resources, with the

23

University of Hawaii.

I am the Maui County

24

And I am here this morning to testify in

25

regards to our budget request through the Office
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1

of Economic Development In support of the

2

college's activities in Maui County.

3

developed this request through discussions with

4

ag specialist Kenneth Yamamura, and OED head

5

Lynn Araki Regan.

We

The college operates in Maui County

6
7

through our cooperative extension services in

8

Kahului and in Hoolehua and through our

9

agricultural experiment station, centered in

10

Kula.

11

and technology transfer, backstopping and

12

education to the County agricultural sector, and

13

also for environmental programs in the County.

14

We promote and provide applied research

I

-- I

delivered to each of your offices

15

a small packet of information about the

16

background and some detail about the budget

17

requests that we are asking for.

18

for line item support for our programs in the

19

County_

And this is

The college invests about one and a half

20
21

million dollars a year in CTAHR in Maui County_

22

About 93 percent of that is for our salaries,

23

electricity, operations.

24

Federal support and fairly level State support,

25

it becomes more and more challenging to deliver

And with decreasing
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our programs.
And in the information I sent you, you

2

3

can see that across the U.S., County governments

4

support about 24 percent of the budget to

5

extension services nationwide.

6

Hawaii, we are one of the only states that

7

doesn't do that.

Now -- and In

8

In Maui County, we have been fortunate

9

to receive ad hoc funding grants from both the

10

County Council and through the Mayor's budget,

11

and we are certainly appreciative of that in the

12

past.

13

continuing and accelerated delivery of our

14

programs in the ag industry with recurring

15

funding.

But we could really be able to provide

And we are asking this year for

16

- well,

17

In this comlng Fiscal Year for approximately

18

$98;500 for our programs.

19

I provided any details -- or I have provided the

20

details.

21

be glad to answer this.

22

that we have on Maui, Lanai

As I said, I have

And if you have any questions, I would
This is for activities
I

and Molokai.

And also, I would like to say that we

23

24

collaborate with several partners, with the Farm

25

Bureau.

We provide housing for Maui Invasive
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1

Species Committees, and the East Maui Watershed

2

Partnership at one of our ag stations.

3

One of our departments in the college,

4

Natural Resource and Environmental Management,

5

is working with the staff of MCC to provide a

6

four-year --

7

MR. RAATZ:

8

MR. KEYSER:

9
10

11

Three minutes.
degree program on Maui.

you very much.

And thank

I'd be glad to answer any

questions.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Keyser.

12

Members, any questions for Mr. Keyser?

13

Hearing none, thank you for your

14

testimony.

15

Jo-Ann Ridao.

16

Alexa Betts Basinger.

17

MS. RIDAO:

She will be followed by

Good morning, Council Budget Chair Kane,

18

and Members of the Council.

My name is Jo-Ann

19

Ridao, and I am the Executive Director at Lokahi

20

Pacific.
I am here this mornlng to speak in

21
22

support of the Mayor's Office of Economic

23

Development budget item that supports the

24

Wailuku Blue Hawaii building project next to the

25

lao Theater.

And if you notice, it's currently
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under construction.

Yay!

You have heard in the past and you will

2
3

hear this morning from Alexa Basinger, who is

4

immediately following me to testify, why we need

5

this money.
I would like to take my time this

6
7

morning to assure you that these funds will be a

8

great investment with extraordinary returns to

9

Maui County.

This year, Lokahi Pacific is

10

celebrating 35 years of service to Maui County.

11

Our rental housing programs have provided

12

shelter to hundreds of special needs Maui

13

citizens.
Tomorrow, we will be celebrating the

14
15

completion of the Lokahi Kuhua project in

16

Lahaina that will provide home ownership to 12

17

of Maui's families who are at 80 percent and

18

below of the Maui County median income

19

project we are very proud of.

I

a

Lokahi Pacific's small business loan

20

21

program have assisted companies such as Valley

22

Isle Marine Center currently operating right

23

here in Wailuku.

24

that at one time could not secure conventional

25

bank financing today is a successful small

This long-time Maui business
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1

business, employing Maui citizens, and giving

2

back to the Maui community.
More recently, through the Lokahi

3

4

Pacific Small Business 504 loan program, we were

5

able to help Maui Chemical and Paper Supply

6

purchase their warehouse property.

7

longstanding Maui business employs over 40 of

8

Maui's citizens.

9

spent right here on Maui.

This

All of those paychecks are

Statistics from 1992 to present show our

10
11

small business loan program have provided --

12

provided approximately $10 million of small

13

businesses -

14

approximately 100 -- to approximately 130 small

15

businesses in Maui County.

16

Maui economy, these small businesses have

17

created many, many jobs in Maui County.

I am sorry -

$10 million and

As a backbone of the

I make these points to you this morning

18

19

because, as investors, we look to invest in

20

companies with longevity and a proven track

21

record.

22

been in business for 35 years, with a proven

23

track record.

24
25

Lokahi Pacific lS a non-profit that has

Through its training and incubation
programs, the Wailuku Small Business Center will
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1

provide the small business entrepreneur an

2

opportunity for success at a greater and faster

3

rate.

4

MR. RAATZ:

5

MS. RIDAO:

6

That is why I say
Three minutes.
- your investment in this project will

have extraordinary returns to Maui County.
I thank you for listening to me this

7
8

morning, and I will be happy to answer any

9

questions you may have.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Ridao.

11

Members, any questions?

12

Ms. Tavares.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Good morning, Ms. Ridao.

14

15

MS. RIDAO:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

18
19

Yes, thank you.

Good morning.
Are you making a request of

the Council for monetary support?
MS. RIDAO:

We are in the Office of Economic

Development budget for $300,000.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

22

Any further questions?

23

Is it anticipated that

is this a

24

one-time, or is this something that you look at

25

asking for in annual requests?
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I -- I think Alexa may be addressing

2

that; however, you -- you know that you already

3

gave us 100-plus-thousand for equipment.

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

MS. RIDAO:

Yes.
This is our second request for this

6

project.

7

come to the Council unless absolutely necessary.

8

We have never come to the Council for operation

9

moneys, always for capital improvement moneys.

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

MS. RIDAO:

12

CHAIR KANE:

And Lokahi's -- we have always not

Thank you, Ms. Ridao.
Thank you.
Members?

13

Thank you very much.

14

Alexa Betts Basinger followed by Cynthia

15

Foreman.

16

MS. BETTS BASINGER:

17

Good morning, Chair Kane and

Committee Members.
In preparing for this morning's

18
19

testimony, I looked back to April 15th, 2004,

20

when I stood before you for the very first time,

21

asking for your support toward the purchase of

22

furnishings, fixtures, and equipment for Maui's

23

first shared-use certified commercial kitchen

24

and its companion small business incubator.

25

was nervous, and you were generous, awarding us
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1

$102,000, and we got to buy the kitchen

2

equipment at 2004 prices.

3

much.

Thank you very, very

4

In reviewing that testimony, everything

5

I said in 2004 remains constant and true today,

6

but for one thing.

7

skyrocketed, and this project, as beneficial as

8

it is for our community, has no magical

9

protection from these economic forces.

Construction costs have

So I am

10

before you today to ask for your concurrence

11

with the $300,000 capital grant that Mayor

12

Arakawa has included in his 2007 budget to

13

complete construction of this innovative

14

mixed use and multi-purpose community facility

15

project.

16

scheduling a grand opening for September of this

17

year.

Construction is under way, and we are

With your help during this renewed

18
19

capital campaign, the investment by category to

20

this project

21

this project is funded by Federal

22

State, and other funds; 12.94 percent would be

23

funded by the County of Maui.

24

the partnership of over 12 wide-ranging funding

25

sources speaks clearly to the

lS

as follows:

Over 87 percent of
I

Council Members,
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1

community-enriching quality of this project and

2

its programs.

3

stake in a project that serves 100 percent of

4

its citizens directly or indirectly.

5

importantly, the resulting benefits to the

6

community will far exceed the investment.

7

project is good development.

And more

This

And while we are on the topic of

8
9

The County will have a 13 percent

development and revitalization of our capital

10

town, we would also like to lend our support to

11

the MRA line item.

12

to get the MRA started and strengthened was

13

wonderful, and to continue it is a fine

14

obligation.

15

the MRA funding request.

16
17

CHAIR KANE:

Your contribution last year

So Lokahi Pacific fully supports

Thank you.

Thank you.

Members, any questions for

our testifier?
I asked the question previously and so

18
19

if I didn't catch it, forgive me.

20

specifically is going to be for a one-time, or

21

are you looking for annual?

22

that's attached to the 13 percent investment.

23

MS. BETTS BASINGER:

This 300,000

And I don't know if

It is a one-time.

The

24

13 percent investment includes the County's

25

already commit -- money for equipment.
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1

project is and will be a self-sufficient

2

project, self sustaining.

3

controlled constructions costs, we wouldn't be

4

here.

5

Thank you.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Basinger.

8
9

Thank you.

Cynthia Foreman, and she will followed

6
7

If we could have

by Diane Meyer.
MS. FOREMAN:

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Council

Members.

You saw me the other night in Kihei

10

with my ten-year-old son, and I am here again as

11

a mother.

12

the economics professor at Maui Community

13

College.

14

public schools here in Maui.

15

support the funding for Maui Community College

16

because I believe it has the potential to

17

lmprove our children's public education.

My name is Cynthia Foreman, and I am

And I do have two children who attend
And I urge you to

When I moved here seven years ago, I was

18
19

advised by some of my colleagues that the

20

schools here were not that great

21

okay at the elementary school level.

22

pattern of families seems to be to keep their

23

children in the elementary public schools, but

24

when they get to middle school and high school,

25

you pull them out and enroll them in private

l

but they were

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

The

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 3/30/06

1

58

schools.
I have always been a believer in public

2

3

education, so this advice troubled me.

4

very strongly that we can't give up on our

5

public schools.

6

elementary school and began volunteering on a

7

regular basis.

8

was very pleased with the elementary school.

So I enrolled my kids in the

I continued over the years and

Then we got to middle school.

9

I feel

It's been

10

a rough three years.

As with any school, there

11

are good teachers and bad teachers.

12

middle school level, it seems to be there are

13

teachers who survive and teachers who do not

14

survive.

15

case on Lanai, and this lS the case on Molokai;

16

teachers that last, and teachers that leave

17

right away.

But on the

This is the case on Maui, this is the

The teachers who last the longest seem

18
19

to be and seem to relate to the children the

20

best are the ones that were raised here on Maui,

21

or in Hawaii.

22

clueless -- I will use that word, he said

23

stupid

The ones who my son claims are

(Laughter.)

24

AUDIENCE:

25

MS. FOREMAN:

-- are the many young teachers that
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1

come here straight from the Mainland, straight

2

out of college.

3

Now, I think back to the warnings that

4

my colleagues gave me, and right now, I have a

5

son who is in fifth grade.

6

friends drive around the island with their kids

7

every weekend to take entrance exams at places

8

like Seabury and St. Anthony's, and I am -

9

right back there with those warnings.

So I am watching my

I am

But as a

10

single mother, I don't have the funds for

11

private school and a mortgage.

12

within my means.

13

opt out of public schools.

14

be to opt out of Hawaii and try to find a job in

15

a State that has better public schools.

16

have a good job here, and I have a good life

17

here.

18

MR. RAATZ:

19

MS. FOREMAN:

That's not

So I don't have that option to
My only option would

But I

Three minutes.

Oh , now you warned me.
So I am going to continue to try to do

20

21

all I can to support the public schools and

22

improve the public schools.

23

educating teachers here, right in our own

24

community, is the key to improving the public

25

schools.

And I believe that

These teachers could be coming right

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 3/30/06

60

1

out of high school and starting their careers,

2

their educations, or they could be people coming

3

back to school, wanting to become teachers.

4

These people would have families in the

5

community.

6

They would understand the cultural diversity of

7

the students that they are going to be facing.

8

They would understand the economic struggles

9

that the families face here.

10

They would have connections here.

So Maui Community

College is a perfect place to educate teachers.
The need is great, the community is

11

12

growing.

13

The turnover rate of existing teachers is

14

terrible.

15

MR. RAATZ:

16

MS. FOREMAN:

17

18

21
22

23

CHAIR KANE:

Oh, and the time is now.

So I just

Thank you, Ms. Foreman.
Members, any questions for the

testifier?
MS. FOREMAN:

I know some of you have children in

public schools so you can resonate.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Diane Meyer.

24

25

Four minutes.

urge you to support this teacher agenda.

19
20

The number of schools are growing.

She will be followed by

Janet Six.
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Aloha, my name is Diane Meyer.

I am a

2

professor at Maui Community College for 25

3

years.

4

AUDIENCE:

5

MS. MEYER:

I know I look that old.
(Laughter.)
And I have been an educator on Maui for

6

35 years.

I have been with Baldwin ten years.

7

So I am here to support the Mayor's budget

8

proposal for support of higher education in Maui

9

Nui.
True, we are a State-supported

10
11

institution, and we share in the resources of

12

the State.

13

receive County resources, which will greatly

14

enhance MCC's already great resources for the

15

benefit of Maui Nui.

16

with lovely buildings, and we have a dedicated

17

faculty and staff, and we can continue at our

18

present rate with State funding.

19

County funding added, we can do so much more

20

with the resources that are centered at this

21

spot at MCC.

We are asking for the opportunity to

The State has provided us

But with

You have all received a copy of MCC's

22
23

proposed -- proposal outlining a

24

well thought-out plan for support of our present

25

two-year programs and expansion into four-year
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1

programs.

It is a win-win situation.

The

2

students of Maui Nui deserve nothing less.
Look at the physical and human resources

3
4

that are located at the end of Papa and Wakea

5

Streets.

6

these assets with County support.

7

Council that provides funds to leverage assets

8

already in place.

It is wise and prudent to leverage
It is a wise

I want to close with a success story.

9

10

Being a teacher -- I never wanted to be a

11

teacher, but I ended up being one, and it is the

12

best job in the world.

13

stories, and I just want to end with one, and I

14

hope that it can be repeated many more times.

You have so many success

I had a young boy in my class.

15

I teach

16

accounting.

He finished his two years with us.

17

He did very well.

18

He got his four-year degree.

19

He worked on the Mainland several years.

20

came back to Hawaii, back to Maui, worked.

21

I saw him in Office Max the other night.

22

said, "Mrs. Meyer, I bought an office building

23

In Wailuku."

He went on to the Mainland.
He became a CPA.

24

And I said, "Oh, good for you."

25

He said,

And
He

"My office is going to be on
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1

the second floor.

2

bottom. "
And I want to see more Maui students

3
4

buying office buildings on Maui.

Thank you.

Any questions?

5

6

I am going to rent out the

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Meyer.

7

Members, any questions?

8

Hearing none, thank you very much.

9

Janet Six, followed by Crisanta

10

11

Fillazar.
MS. SIX:

Good morning, Chair Kane and Council

12

Members.

My name is Janet Six.

13

two capacities.

14

I am also here as a special projects

15

coordinator, and I worked a lot on this

16

particular proposal, so if I can make a couple

17

of things clear that were asked earlier.

I am here as an MCC alumni, and

I had to leave Maui.

18

I am here In

I graduated in

19

1995.

There was no ABIT Program.

20

Center wasn't up and going.

21

take my credits.

They only took 48 of my 60.

22

So I went to NYU.

I graduated there in '98.

23

attended Columbia University.

24

from there in anthropology.

25

Ph.D. at the University of Pennsylvania.

Manoa would not

(808)524-2090

Fax:

I

I have a master's
I am now getting my
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1

specialty is historical archeology, in

2

particular, sugar plantations.

3

way to get back.

4

back here, and I bugged the Chancellor for years

5

and many times going, "I want to come back to

6

Maui. "

So I figured a

I worked really hard to get

7

I want to address a little bit of some

8

of the negative comments you may have seen and

9

some of the things you see flying around ln

10

e-mails.

I taught at Hilo.

You want to talk

11

about mold in buildings.

You want to talk about

12

run-down infrastructure.

The faculty there, I

13

had five people in an office.

14

Ph.D.s, they could be teaching all over the

15

place.

These people with

They want to be in Hawaii.
They have a strategy there and that was

16
17

to start bringing in some international and

18

Mainland students in order to generate revenues

19

and support the infrastructure, and it's been

20

very successful.

21

reinvent the wheel here.

So we are not trying to

Also, you asked will some of this money

22
23

that's in the first year, this -- this 2 million

24

we are asking for, go towards shoring up nursing

25

positions.

Absolutely.

And I ask you to look
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1

at the budget.

It's a line item budget.

2

don't have

3

but I will be glad to get to that.

everything spelled out for you,

Infrastructure.

4

We

We have 150,000 for

5

classroom repairs and upgrades so we can have

6

nursing classes and laboratories.

7

100,000 in there for library materials.

8

a full-time librarian in there.

We have
We have

If you look at the first column, it's

9

10

really shoring up our two-year programs.

Four

11

people would be hired the first year to teach

12

English, biology, sociology, and dental hygiene,

13

which have all been marked by our faculty as

14

positions of need.

15

So I just want to say, for the

16

nay-sayers and people that don't particularly

17

like this proposal, I would like to see some

18

other alternative suggestions.

19

facing, you know, high energy -- I just put

20

$3.25 a gallon in my Jeep this morning.

21

now costing me $40 to fill up a Jeep.

We are all

It's

We are facing different problems on

22

23

Maui.

We try to look at community concerns.

24

are a community college.

25

role from the -- our cues from the community.

We like to take our
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I worked on this proposal with the

1

2

Chancellor and many other faculty and staff

3

members.

4

at our supporting documents, where they are

5

comlng from, Department of Labor, projections.

6

This is stuff you all know about.

Nancy pointed

7

out the acute shortage of nurses.

Sandra

8

pointed out the teaching, the problem with

9

teachers.

10

So I ask that you really take a look

They come, they get sticker shock,

they get culture shock, whatever, they split.
I was very lucky to be able to return to

11

12

Maui.

13

lived here since 1978.

14

MR. RAATZ:

15

MS. SIX:

I am not born and raised, but I have

Three minutes.
Okay.

I just want to say I was one of the

16

older students that went back to school.

17

33.

18

me, I wouldn't be in this position now.

If the college hadn't have been there for

Thank you very much.

19
20

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Six.

21

Members, any questions?

22

Hearing none, thank you for your

23

testimony.
Crisanta Fillazar, followed by Elena

24

25

I was

Alexander.
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MS. FILLAZAR:

My name is Crisanta Fillazar.

I am a

second-year RN nursing student at MCC.
Nursing is my second career.

3

I was a

4

recreation therapist for ten years, and I got my

5

education in Washington because there was no

6

program here on Maui.

7

returned back here in 2003 to pursue a nurslng

8

career, since being a recreation therapist, that

9

was not going to support my two children at that

10

I grew up here, so I

time.
I have been pleased with the education I

11
12

have received from the college.

During our

13

clinicals, at the hospital, at Kaiser, at Hale

14

Makua, and other facilities, we meet many MCC

15

nursing graduates, and they have been very, very

16

helpful and support this nursing program also.
Nancy and the nursing faculty have tried

17
18

to reduce the student ratio so that we are able

19

to have a good hands-on quality experience

20

during our clinicals.
So I support this nursing program, and

21
22

ask you for more funding to support it.
Our class was the -- is the largest.

23
24

started off with 50 students, thanks to the

25

grants that funded another faculty.
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And

1

- and right now, I am doing a

2

preceptorship in labor and delivery.

And the

3

other day, you know, a nurse called in sick, and

4

it took an hour for them to find someone else to

5

fulfill that vacancy.

6

work a double shift, which means that she had to

7

work 16 hours.

8

be taken care by a nurse that works 8 hours or

9

16 hours?

And that person had to

And I ask you, would you want to

You know, it's very, very hard.

But I support this program, and I have

10
11

been very pleased, and it's nice to be home and

12

have my family here.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.

14

Members, any questions?

15

Hearing none, thank you for your

16

testimony.
Elena Alexander followed by Jennifer

17
18

Yoshioka.

19

MS. ALEXANDER:

Aloha.

Good morning.

20

Elena Alexander.

21

Haiku.

22

as the student life coordinator.

My name is

I was born and raised in

I have the privilege of working for MCC

I am here to ask for your support for

23
24

higher education on Maui.

MCC provides our

25

people an opportunity to educate themselves.
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1

Life is hard.

Trying to make a living in Maui

2

is hard with an education.

3

challenges without one.

4

our best for ourselves, our families, and our

5

communities.

I can't imagine the

We're all trying to do

6

I see my students struggling to work and

7

go to school so that their lives will be better.

8

Education is the only thing I know that fosters

9

positive change.

MCC is a place where that

10

change can occur.

No one leaves MCC the same

11

person that they were when they walked in.

12

see this every day as I get the privilege to

13

advise MCC student government, and you saw two

14

of my students.

I

I am so proud of them.

I understand the challenge you face of

15

16

balancing budget needs with budget realities.

17

have a master's degree.

18

for my education.

19

I tried to purchase a home on Maui and could

20

afford nothing/ not even Harbor Lights.

I

I worked really hard

It saddened me last year when

All my friends from college did not come

21
22

home.

They all own their own home and have much

23

financial success.

24

that's why I am here.

I believe in MCC.

25

why I came back home.

That's why I work here.

I tell you this because
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1

I am here to say that I believe education is

2

worth sacrificing for.

3

students and I do every single day, and I expect

4

nothing less from my government.

It is something my

I would like to end with a quote from

5

6

Walt Disney.

7

and build the most wonderful idea in the world.

8

But it requires people to make that dream a

9

reality. "
We are all here.

10

11
12

"You can dream, create, and design

support.
CHAIR KANE:

Now we need your

Thank you.
Thank you.

13

Members, questions?

14

Hearing none, thank you for your

15

testimony this morning.
Jennifer Yoshioka, followed by Jill

16
17

18

Riggs.
MS. YOSHIOKA:

Aloha and good morning.

Thank you,

19

Members of the Maui County Council for this

20

opportunity to testify today.

21

Jennifer Yoshioka, Chair of the Associated

22

Students of Maui Community College Student

23

Governance Council.

24

the Maui Community College student body

25

population to ask that you reconsider and invest

My name lS

And I am here on behalf of
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In higher education on Maui.
It's funny that I stand here before you

2

3

today.

It feels a little bit like deja vu

4

because a little less than a year ago

5

here before you to testify on this very same

6

lssue.

7

Program t and I had asked that you please invest

8

In Maui Community College so that students such

9

as myself do not have to go elsewhere for a

t

I came

At that time, I was enrolled in the ABIT

10

baccalaureate degree.

I then stated to you that

11

hopefully it happened sooner than later, or I

12

will be forced to leave Maui to pursue my

13

dreams.

14

moving to Oahu to pursue my baccalaureate this

15

coming fall semester.

UnfortunatelYt true to my words t I am

Less than a year ago

16

t

I also submitted

17

to you over 200 signatures from my fellow

18

students, and I managed to actually collect them

19

during finals week, which was not an easy task

20

to do.
Wei the students of Maui Community

21
22

College, are in need of a four-year institution

23

here on Maui, as Maui's population over the past

24

20 years has increased over 70 percent.

25

fellow students are unable to receive the
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1

quality of education that they so desire and are

2

forced to either attend a university either in

3

the neighbor islands of Honolulu or Hilo, or

4

even farther, to Mainland universities.

5

With the new dormitories being built,

6

MCC can now provide for those students coming

7

from Lanai, Molokai, and even other neighbor

8

islands.

9

County to grow in more ways than one.

Imagine the possibilities for Maui
I see the

10

ABIT degree as a stepping stone of what MCC can

11

become, and that is a University of Hawaii at

12

Maui.
I stand here before you again asking

13
14

you, as a student, as a taxpayer, as a

15

visionary, to please invest into the future of

16

Maui County and the future of your students.

17

You have the influence and capabilities to

18

empower the students who have already invested

19

so much.

20

want to learn and to gain the knowledge they

21

need to stay right here at home in Maui.

22

for your time.

23

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Yoshioka.
Members

24

25

Please pass the torch to those that

I

any questions for our

testifier?
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1

I have a question for you, Ms. Yoshioka.

2

Have you been able to, as the Chair, engage with

3

your State representatives and get an

4

inclination as to what type of support beyond

5

the way the college is being run now, the status

6

quo, as far as the actual growth and expansion

7

of the college to four-year baccalaureate

8

degrees?

9

MS. YOSHIOKA:

Yes, I have expressed to several

10

Senators, Senator Hee, Tommy Waters, about

11

about basically our, you know, our biennium

12

budget and our supplemental budget this year.

13

And through talking to them, they do show

14

support in investing in Maui because Maui County

15

lS

16

opposed to Hilo is centric and Oahu is one

17

island, and they do notice that everything is

18

Oahu-centric, and we hope to change that,

19

hopefully_

20

composed of three major islands, and as

CHAIR KANE:

Have they provided you with anything to

21

back up their support as far as bills or

22

financial requests to support the college here

23

on Maui?

24

MS. YOSHIOKA:

25

proposal.

Yes.

I believe they upped our

We -- they have actually talked
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1

with -- personally with Chancellor Sakamoto

2

about sustainable technology in particular.

3

are looking into building a carport over the

4

large parking infrastructure on Maui's -- on the

5

campus.

And basically, it's like photovoltaic,

6

right?

And so that will hopefully take away the

7

majority of our cost of our electric bill.
So they are in support.

8

9
10

They actually

worked with Chancellor Sakamoto to change the
proposal, the initial proposal.

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

MS. YOSHIOKA:

13

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Mahalo.
Jill Riggs, followed by Lori Van Duisen,

14

and I -- forgive me if I am mispronouncing

15

names.

16

We

MS. RIGGS:

Hi, Council Chair, Council Members.

I am

17

Jill Riggs, and I am here to represent and to

18

testify for Maui Community College/ specifically

19

the nursing instructors.

20

Being one of the qualified applicants

21

that got turned down in the past, it's

22

discouraging, and it almost made me move from

23

the island, in 2004.

24

am glad I stayed because it is a wonderful

25

institution.

I decided to stay.

It is a great program.
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1

wonderful instructors, and if we only had more,

2

we could have more students and more nurses for

3

Maui and Statewide.
If we had more nurses, we could also

4

5

have a fall and a spring enrollment, which meant

6

it would be year-round admissions for the

7

nursing program, instead of just the fall

8

enrollment.
And speaking of the library, I have to

9
10

say that.

The library is closed on Saturdays

11

and Sundays.

12

very hard.

13

budget would help that out.

And for college students, that's
So just adding money to the MCC

Being a former teacher myself, and

14

15

possibly a future nursing instructor, I ask for

16

the money, and I ask for your support.

17

that's about it.

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

MS. RIGGS:

20

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Riggs.
Thank you.

25

I

thank you for your

testimony.
Lori Van Duisen, followed by Hayley

23

24

Members, questions?
Hearing none

21

22

And

Clapson.
MS. VAN DUISEN:

Good morning, Council Members.
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1

name is Lori Van Duisen.

2

nursing student, second year.
I,

3

too, am an MCC

I,

like Jill, was also turned down even

4

though I had met all of the academic criteria in

5

the first running.

6

had done, like several students who are turned

7

down, end up getting our bachelor's

8

prerequisites prior to even beginning the latter

9

program.

I had to reapply.

What we

So then, we are graduating this

10

spring, with our ADN, all very pleased with

11

that, about eight credits shy of a bachelor's

12

degree.
So I -- I am looking at Hilo.

13
14

transfer.

15

there, if I am willing to move there.

16

family.

17

realistic.

18

very pleased with that.

I can

I could do it in a year and a half

I am married.

I have a

That's not real

So I am going to stay with my ADN/

I also have children in the elementary

19
20

school system and in high school that would

21

greatly benefit from a bachelor's program here

22

on Maui.

23

gasoline, just food here on Maui, all large

24

expenses for a family, paying out-of-state

25

tuition would be completely unrealistic.

Being the cost of living, housing,
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So I strongly suggest supporting this

1

I, as a mother and a student, can only

2

program.

3

see great things, the future of Maui with this.

4

We are growing at astronomical proportions In

5

all directions.

6

Haliimaile, Upcountry, Wailea, here.

7

husband is in the construction industry.

8

growing all around us, whether it's roads,

9

tourism.
children?

11

you.
CHAIR KANE:

My

Why not invest in our future,

10

12

I mean, the plans for

It can only be beneficial.

We are

in our
Thank

Thank you, Ms. Van Duisen.

13

Members, any questions?

14

Hearing none, thank you.

15

Hayley Clapson, followed by Yukiko

16
17

McClure.
MS. CLAPSON:

Good mornlng.

My name is Hayley

18

Clapson.

19

Maui Community College.

20

the request for funds to back up the college.

21

I am also a second-year student at
I am here to support

I also was turned down, actually, on

22

Oahu from a couple -- from the nursing program a

23

couple of times, and I applied here on Maui, and

24

I got the letter,

25

can get the other instructor, then you will be

"Congratulations.

But, if we
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in the program."
So they were waiting on funds to get

2

3

another instructor, and luckily for me -- and I

4

can't even express how grateful I am

5

were able to get the grants for that additional

6

instructor because now I am standing here today

7

with my classmates, graduating in May.
And we just need the instructors.

8
9

- they

need more classroom time.

We

We need nurses.

10

Everybody knows there's a nursing shortage.

11

Just last week, I went to turn in my

12

application.

13

the hospital offers us.

14

the nursing administration building kind of

15

jokingly said to me,

16

Do you want to work tonight?"

We have a new grad program that
And the secretary in

"I had a sick call in ICU.

And everybody knew, you know, just kind

17
18

of a joke.

I am a student.

I can't fill in for

19

an RN.

20

kind of shortage that Maui specifically has with

21

their nurses.

But it just really made me realize the

So I am just really strongly support

22

23

ask for your support in this nursing program at

24

MCC.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Thank you, Ms. Clapson.
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1

Members, questions?

2

Hearing none, thank you for your

3

testimony.
Yukiko McClure, followed by Lois

4
5

6

Greenwood.
MS. McCLURE:

Good morning, Council.

Good morning,

7

everybody.

My name is Yukiko McClure.

I

8

appreciate the opportunity I am given to speak

9

about the nursing shortage on Maui.

Health is

10

one of the most important factor in human life.

11

We all long for the good health all through our

12

lives; however, this is a time we need

13

professional people to help mending our

14

illnesses or injuries.

15

In Maui, we have Maui Community College

16

nursing program.

17

class students.

18

Center for clinical routine, and in those time,

19

I often eyewitnessed some serious ill people

20

waiting for available bed to stay in hospital.

21

For example, like, if it's my family, my loved

22

ones, waiting for the bed to open, it's really a

23

life-threatening feeling.

24
25

I am one of 40 ADN second-year
We go to Maui Memorial Medical

And I am so happy and pleased to serve
Maui community, and being a nurse after I finish
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1

this program; however, nursing lS really short.

2

Nursing shortage relates directly nursing

3

faculty shortage.

4

need to go through not only associate degree, to

5

bachelor, to master, and we also need clinical

6

experience, too.

7

degree on Maui.

8

education, we need to move out from this island,

9

or need to take some distance courses.

To be a nursing faculty, we

And we only have associate
So in order to go farther

10

I am planning to take distance courses

11

because I can't afford to move out, and I love

12

staying on Maui.
So by funding and providing those

13
14

programs for the higher education, we can not

15

only help faculty shortage, or nursing shortage,

16

we can help our lives, our Maui people's lives.

17

So please consider and funding the -- the Maui

18

Community College.

19

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. McClure.

20

Members, any questions?

21

Hearing none, thank you very much.

22

Lois Greenwood, followed by Malia

23

Davidson.

24

MS. GREENWOOD:

25

Good morning.

I am Lois Greenwood.

And I am the Director of VITEC in the Continuing
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1

Ed Department of Maui Community College.

VITEC

2

stands for Vital and Innovative Training and

3

Economic Development Center.
Actually, many years ago -- I am the

4

5

founding director, and we have been going now

6

for 18 years.

7

to the County to ask for some support as we were

8

struggling as a new and growing program.

9

all had the -- the County Council at that time

In our early stages, I came here

You

10

had indicated the infrastructural need for a

11

training program to support our businesses In

12

leading-edge training, so that our local

13

workforce would stay competitive with workforces

14

around the country.
And you supported us at that time, and

15
16

it was about -- you gave us about three or four

17

years of support.

18

it got us on our feet.

19

self sufficient now.

20

workforce development training programs In the

21

State.

22

successful.

23

hadn't had your support at that critical time.

24

I think that what we are talking about

25

And it was most welcome, and
It got us solid.

We are one of the largest

We are considered one of the most
And we wouldn't have made it if we

here today is that kind of need.

The need to
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1

glve us a lift.

We are not in

in critical

2

times of growth here at the college so that we

3

can continue on with our mission.
You know, I know the importance of

4

well, number one, I

5

higher education because

6

was a professional student.

7

I myself understand the importance of higher ed.

8

But as I work with employers in this community,

9

they are always telling me that how -- what they

I have a Ph.D.

So

10

feel lacks in our workforce is the lack of

11

critical thinking skills, and critical thinking

12

skills comes through higher education.

13

in fact what is one of the most significant

14

contributions to -- that you get when you

15

when you go on for bachelor's degrees.

This is

I sit also on the County Advisory Group

16

17

for the State Strategic Planning for Tourism for

18

this County, and you know, it is a founding

19

assumption of this group, that is made up of

20

business leaders, community, and government

21

leaders, that the quality of life of our

22

residents here is essential to the foundation

23

for any growth and development in this County.
And then -- that being said, the support

24

25

of the County for higher education demonstrates
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1

to our community the commitment to the long-term

2

growth and development of our residents.

3

also shows your commitment to the economic

4

development of this County in order for us to

5

have more highly -- a more highly trained

6

workforce.

7

development -

8

MR. RAATZ:

9

MS. GREENWOOD:

10

MR. RAATZ:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

13

It

It shows your commitment to the

Three minutes.
I am sorry?

Three minutes.
You are being notified of your three

minutes.
MS. GREENWOOD:

Thank you.

Thank you.

14

to the human infrastructure.

15

know, we recognize you -- in developing

16

infrastructure, water, roads, Civil Defense, we

17

recognize the need for collaboration with the

18

Federal and the State levels.

19

infrastructural development often requires that

20

kind of County, State, and Federal

21

collaboration.

22

You

Any

What we feel you are doing here is

23

sending a very strong signal to the State that

24

Maui means it.

25

a lead when it's time to take care of our

You know, Maui has always taken
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1

people.

We took that lead in tourism.

2

one of the highest percentage in our budget in

3

support of tourist -- tourism development to

4

support the economic development of this

5

community.

6

to send a very strong signal --

7

MR. RAATZ:

8

MS. GREENWOOD:

9

We need

-- to the State that we mean it in

terms of human resource development as well.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Greenwood.
Members, any questions for our

12
13

And we need to do the same.

Four minutes.

10

11

We have

testifier?

14

Hearing none, thank you very much.

15

Malia Davidson.

And, Members, when

16

Ms. Davidson finishes her testimony, and any

17

questions for her, we will be taking a IS-minute

18

recess.

Ms. Davidson.

19

MS. DAVIDSON:

Re-park your cars.

20

AUDIENCE:

21

MS. DAVIDSON:

22

Members.

I am so pleased to be here this

23

mornlng.

This is a topic that I have been

24

passionate about since I was a student.

25

product of MCC.

(Laughter. )
Good morning, Chairman Kane, Council

Many of these people have been
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1

my instructors.

And now I sit at MCC as the

2

financial aid counselor.

I went through the UH system as well at

3
4

UH Center, and then I got my

5

Actually, I

6

degree at UH Manoa.

7

in two capacities, one as the financial aid

8

counselor, and the other as a former student.

I

left Maui.

commuted to Oahu to get my master's
So I am going to be talking

9

Attached to my testimony, you have data

10

of financial aid applications and how they have

11

grown in the last three years as long -- as well

12

as what has been awarded.

13

without outreach.

Now, this is done

As the counselor, a financial aid

14
15

counselor, my -- my job now is to go and do

16

outreach work.

17

been given this position.

18

Lanai, and Hana.

19

areas have their own specific challenges and

20

needs.

21

I

This is the first time MCC has
So I go to Molokai,

And as we all know, these

don't like to be Oahu-centric.
found when I went away.

And

22

that's what I

23

my goal to make sure that every student on

24

those sites are taken care of just as much as

25

the student in Kahului.
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Okay.

1

So with that said t I wanted to

2

make a couple of other points that may be doubts

3

that have been placed in your minds t and that is

4

the position of a student at the UH Center.

5

Now t if you have no other opportunitYt it's

6

fantastic.

I was very pleased to be able to

7

to have -

to have my bachelor's or take my --

8

attain my bachelor's degree here on Maui.

9

am grateful to those instructors who came from

10

So I

Oahu whenever they could.
But I want to tell you, there is a lack

11

12

of equity, just like the ones that I face with

13

trying to provide to our students on Molokai t

14

Lanai t and Hana.

15

on -

And some of them are listed

on my testimonYt my addendum.

16

For instance t all the tuition and fees

17

that is paid by someone at UH Center -- I went

18

to Manoa -- went to Manoa.

19

representation on those islands -

20

school.

21

couple of times a year, if you are lucky.

22

I didn't have any
at that

Also, your academic counselor comes a

There's a lack of financial aid

23

resources t so I was not told of financial aid

24

resources.

25

today comes from that third and four-year level

A good chunk of my student loans
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1

because there was no one that came from Manoa to

2

Maui.

3

UH Center student come to Maui Community

4

College's financial aid?

5

one system, we have different rules, so that's

6

why that happens.

And you would think, well, why doesn't a

And, for instance, it also takes longer

7

8

9
10

Well, although we are

to get your degree -MR. RAATZ:

Three minutes.

MS. DAVIDSON:

because you could have 10 to 20

11

classes being offered, but once you have gone

12

full-time, those classes fill up real -- real

13

fast,

like you have taken them already.
The other concern I wanted to address is

14
15

the ABIT Program.

I was the first counselor.

16

helped to form and build the student base for

17

that program.

18

regarding that program, I am more than happy

19

to -

I

So if you have any questions

to answer those questions.

20

Finally, I want to say that I know there

21

are some reservations about State funding versus

22

County funding.

23

aide, I would like to remind you -- actually! I

24

don't think you need reminders -- but our Oahu

25

Legislators don't understand, necessarily, that

And as a former legislative
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1

we have many sites that we take care of.

2

may deal with one school, if any.

3

Legislators work extremely hard to make those

4

points come

5

really, the loser here, if we don't receive

6

funding, is the student

7

MR. RAATZ:

8

MS. DAVIDSON:

9

They

So our

- put those points across.

And

Four minutes.
it's the student who is a single

parent, who can't leave the island, the parent

10

who is struggling to get their kid motivated,

11

and it's the -- I am finishing up -- and it's

12

the person, the middle-aged person who has left

13

their job and needs a new career with higher

14

wages.

15

every single day.

16

these are the people that we are empowering in

17

our -

18

hope that you will support this initiative.

19
20

These are the people that I deal with
These are our people, and

in our community.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

So I thank you, and I

If you can state your name

for the record t please.

21

MS. DAVIDSON:

22

CHAIR KANE:

Oh, e kala maio

Malia Davidson.

Thank you, Ms. Davidson.

23

Members, any questions for Ms. Davidson?

24

Hearing none, Members, thank you,

25

Ms. Davidson.
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1

MS. DAVIDSON:

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Members, Ms. Davidson did provide

3

testimony, as did Ms. Perreira, and

4

Ms. Basinger, as well as I believe Ms. McClure.

5

So we will be making Xerox copies because they

6

didn't provide enough to give you now.

7

will make sure that we get those written

8

testimonies to you as well.
Members, it is 10:40.

9

We are going to

10

take a IS-minute morning break.

11

reconvene this meeting at 10:55.

We will

This meeting is in recess.

12
13

RECESS:

10:40 a.m.

14

RECONVENE:

10:57 a.m.

15

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

So we

(Gavel.)

We would like to reconvene the

16

Council's Budget and Finance Committee meeting

17

for March 30th.

18

continuing with public testimony.

21

And we are

Next to testify is Mr. Wayne Steel.

19

20

This is Thursday.

He

will be followed by Mrs. Frances Segundo.
MR. STEEL:

Chair Kane, Council Members, nice to be

22

here today.

My name is Wayne Steel, and

23

effectively, two weeks ago, I was hired as the

24

Maui Redevelopment Agency Manager.

25

appreciates the funding allocated in FY '06 by
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1

you folks and looks forward to justifying your

2

investment in the agency.
I am here to testify today in favor of

3

4

approval of the MRA budget as it appears in the

5

Office of Economic Development section of the

6

Mayor's FY '07 Budget for $295,000.
The funding requested will cover the

7
8

salaries of the manager, and a clerical

9

position, rent for an office in Wailuku, setup

10

expenses for that office, and other

11

administrative expenses.

12

95,000 for the implementation of the marketing

13

section of the Wailuku Redevelopment Plan to be

14

administered by the Office of Economic

15

Development.

In addition, there's

Functionally, this funding will enable

16

17

the MRA to take the next steps in weaning itself

18

from the Planning Department.

19

be providing the initial contact, meet and-greet

20

meetings with interested residents, builders,

21

and current and prospective business owners in

22

Wailuku.

The MRA will now

Following the initial meeting, where

23
24

some prequalification will take place, the MRA

25

will contact the appropriate planner for the
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1

next phase of project evaluation.

The MRA will

2

also handle the routing and bird-dogging of

3

projects as they make their way through the

4

County permitting process.
In addition to processing applications,

5

6

the MRA is proactive.

Important projects for

7

its attention are the expansion of the Market

8

Street Beautification Plan to surrounding

9

streets, creation and operation of a one-stop

10

permit center, and the spearheading of

11

infrastructure improvements in water delivery,

12

drainage and sewer capacity.

The list goes on.

13

with its own location, the MRA will

14

dispense information about its work, answer

15

questions of interested parties, have a presence

16

in the geographical area served by the agency,

17

and overall provide quick responses to members

18

of the public and accountability to the Council.

19

Essentially, there will be one portal through

20

which and from which projects will be handled.
Your continued funding of this agency

21
22

will glve it the opportunity to justify further

23

your past view that creating it as a more

24

independent agency will pay dividends in serving

25

the public and revitalizing Wailuku.
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I have submitted a letter to this

1

2

Committee containing the agency's

3

accomplishments in the past year, and a more

4

detailed analysis of the MRA budget request.

5

MR. RAATZ:

Three minutes.

6

MR. STEEL:

I ask that you please review it.

Thank

7

you very much for your opportunity to testify

8

today.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Steel.

10

Members, questions for Mr. Steel?

11

Mr. Hokama.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Did -- is our information correct, you

13
14

15

Chairman, thank you.

currently have office space in Kahului?
MR. STEEL:

Yes.

We have a temporary space in the

16

Business Resource Center, where the Maui Store

17

is, down in Maui Mall.

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

Mr. Steel?

20

to utilize?

21

MR. STEEL:

And the reason for that

There was nothing in Wailuku for you

We would like to be in Wailuku, and

22

that

23

space in wailuku.

24
25

- this funding would allow us to rent a

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So prior to moving to Kahului,

what space was being utilized?

Or there was no
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space?
MR. STEEL:

There was no space.

3

weeks ago.

4

space.

So prior to that, there was no

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Steel.

Any further questions?
Mr. Steel, just maybe one or two

7

8

I just was hired two

questions from myself.

9

I am aware that HRS, and I believe it's

10

50, if I am not mistaken -- if I am mistaken --

11

but Hawaii Revised Statutes provides the agency

12

with funding mechanisms, among other things,

13

to

to exist.

14

to

because you talked about weaning from the

15

Planning Department.

16

Economic Development Office, so hopefully it's

17

going to be weaned from Economic Development as

18

well into an independent agency that can provide

19

its own funding.

Is it going to be your charge

I see this under the

So my question is are you folks working

20
21

towards pursuing and optimizing your folks'

22

ability as an agency to provide your own funding

23

to sustain yourselves for -- for the agency or

24

the redevelopment area?

25

MR. STEEL:

I would say that's under discussion with
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1

the Commissioners.

There are no specific plans

2

ln place at this point.

3

of just going one step at a time.

4

Planning.

5

like you say, mechanisms to make it

6

self-standing.

I think they are kind

Now it is under OED.

It was under
And there are,

7

And my experience is that there -- it

8

has to go through a lot of different planning

9

stages with Corp. Counsel and -- and Finance and

10

so on.

11

better answer as time goes on.

12

CHAIR KANE:

So I guess I will be able to glve you a

Okay.

And -- and finally,

if you can,

13

may I ask that you, perhaps, give this Committee

14

an idea, once you folks have gotten closer to

15

focusing on how you are going to sustain the

16

agency, if you can give us an understanding of

17

the type of funding over a period of time that

18

you folks will be looking at, hopefully in a

19

decreasing manner from County support.

20

MR. STEEL:

Yes

j

I will be happy to do that.

One of the ideas that has been

21
22

suggested, and with your approval, I would like

23

to meet on a regular

24

basis with the appropriate Council Committee to

25

kind of update them as to the activities of the

j

if that's appropriate
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1

MRA and answering questions as you have just

2

raised.

3

doing as its manager.

4

CHAIR KANE:

So that's -- that's something I plan on

Great.

Thank you.

And our staff is

5

available to schedule those type of meetings

6

with our regularly scheduled Budget and Finance,

7

or whoever the appropriate standing committee is

8

to have the discussions with you.

9
10

MR. STEEL:
CHAIR KANE:

I knew it was

50-something, so 53 --

13

MR. STEEL:

14

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, it's 53.5.
Thank you very much.

Okay.

Next to testify, Frances Segundo.

15
16

Thank you very much.
And finally, it's HRS 53.

11
12

Thank you.

And

she will be followed by Doug MacCluer.

17

MS. SEGUNDO:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

MS. SEGUNDO:

Aloha, Dain.

Aloha, Council Members.

Aloha.
I am Frances Segundo.

I am a staff

20

person at Maui Community College, and I am here

21

to ask for your support for higher education to

22

meet our community's needs.
Please, by giving our Maui County

23
24

residents the opportunity to receive their

25

education here at home, without having to leave,
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1

would certainly! certainly enhance their

2

well-being.

3

are concerned! they hold you accountable.

4

too, by all means, hold our chancellor! our dean

5

of instruction! administrators, faculty and

6

staff! such as myself! accountable also.

As -- as far as your constituents
So

Despite the e-mails that you have

7

8

received from a few of our faculty! the majority

9

of our campus ohana! many of whom were here

10

earlier, do support this proposal.

11

you for your consideration.

12

CHAIR KANE:

So I thank

Thank you! Mrs. Segundo.

13

Members! any questions?

14

Hearing none! thank you for your

15

testimony.
Doug MacCluer, followed by Stephanie

16
17

18

Ohigashi.
MR. MacCLUER:

Good mornlng.

I am Doug MacCluer,

19

farmed here on Maui for most of my life.

20

farmed lots of different things.

21

attend Maui Community College except to do

22

seminars.

23

as Chairman of The Ulupalakua Thing for 13

24

years, we were in great support of the culinary

25

arts and the ag program.

I did not

And it's a wonderful facility.

(808)524-2090

Fax:
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aloha for the college and request your support.
I am the Board -- on the Board of

2

3

Agriculture representing Maui, and yesterday, we

4

had Carol Okata that was here, and she is the

5

Chief for the Department of Agriculture on

6

quarantines and invasive species.
It was amazing that Maui County is

7

8

continuing to get many invasive species.

In one

9

box of organic lettuce, she found 36 alien

10

insects.

What strikes me is why aren't we

11

growing our own fruits and vegetables when she

12

says 80 percent of our produce is coming in from

13

the Mainland or someplace else?

14

should be farming.

15

water.

16

community.

We farmers

We have good land.

We have

We should be farming to feed our own

17

I would like to ask the County Council

18

to continue to support our agricultural sector

19

on Maui.

20

have food to come in, we are in -- In deep

21

straits.

22

support for the 200,000 that will be going to

23

the Farm Bureau.

24
25

If we have another 9/11, or we don't

And so I would like to request your

We no longer have The Ulupalakua Thing,
which makes us all sad.

Here we are coming into
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1

April, and we would all have been, historically,

2

working like crazy to put together The

3

Ulupalakua Thing.

4

foundation is working with the Farm Bureau so

5

that we will have an ag week, and next year, I

6

think we will have a great program launched.

But we are working, the

Also, I would like to ask for your

7

8

support of the invasive species money.

9

island is being eaten by invasive species, and

10

look at the Fireweed Upcountry.

11

big problem.

12

support for that.

14

MR. RAATZ:

15

MR. MacCLUER:

19

They have done a great job, and

Kenneth and his people are super.
Please remember ago
support.
CHAIR KANE:

We need your

Thanks.
Thank you, Mr. MacCluer.
Members, any questions for our

20

21

So I would like to request your

Three minutes.

17

18

I mean, it is a

Also for Kenneth Yamamura's program.

13

16

Our

testifier?

22

Hearing none, thank you very much.

23

Stephanie Ohigashi, followed by Teri

24

Edmonds.

25

MS. OHIGASHI:

Good morning, Chair Kane and honorable
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1

Members of the Maui County Council.

2

Stephanie Ohigashi, and I am the Chairperson of

3

the Maui Redevelopment Agency for one more day.

4

Tomorrow

5

for five years on this agency.

1S

My name is

my last official day after serving

I just wanted to express that it's been

6
7

a privilege and a very rewarding experience to

8

be part of this dynamic and hard-working

9

commission.

Thanks to all the stakeholders, the

10

property owners, and County departments that

11

have supported this agency.
In the past five years, the MRA has

12
13

approved many applications, including new

14

buildings, such as the ACM Appraisals, Home

15

Managers, and Central Pacific Bank buildings on

16

Wells Street.

17

Gallery and Maui Book Sellers building on Market

18

Street and the Ooka Senior Housing on Central

19

Avenue.

We also approved the Maui Art

Other applications that came before the

20

21

agency were for new buildings that haven't

22

broken ground yet, but they are going to add

23

energy and dynamic activity on both Vineyard and

24

Wells Street.

25

redevelopment area have been rehab'd, remodeled,

Many older buildings in the
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1

spruced up, and provide many needed services for

2

this civic center.

3

In addition, the Market Street

4

Beautification Project will begin very shortly,

5

and it will create an ambience in the

6

street-scape project of Market Street with trees

7

and trash cans, benches, and walkways.

8

be really, really nice.

It will

New projects, like the Lokahi Pacific

9

10

Business Center and the finishing of the lao

11

mini park, will inject excitement and new

12

reasons for people to come to Wailuku.

13

course, there is so much more to be done, and

14

that's why we are here today.

But of

On behalf of the commissioners -- there

15
16

are five volunteers -- I wanted to relay our

17

appreciation for the first installment of your

18

faith in the MRA with the appropriation of the,

19

your $80 1 000 you gave us last year.

20

honored your request to do something

21

have done, No. I, hired a manager, Mr. Wayne

22

Steel, who you met today.

23

his administrative skills and know he will take

24

this agency to a higher level than the five

25

volunteers were able to.
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and we

We very pleased with
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We are working with personnel right now

1
2

to hire a commission support clerk.

You have

3

seen it advertised in The Maui News.

4

made arrangement for training for the manager to

5

attend a national training, and this kind of

6

information will be vital to the ongoing work of

7

the agency.

8

useful hands-on project within the area to

9

provide trash receptacles and litter pickup, and

We have

And we have also begun a very

10

other people will tell you more about that.

11

I ask that you support the agency's

12

request for $200,000 to continue the creation of

13

an autonomous County agency.

14

deserving --

15

MR. RAATZ:

16

MS. OHIGASHI:

We are

Three minutes.
of this support, and we know that

17

it's only just begun to become autonomous.

18

are gOlng to take a little while.

We

19

We also support OED's request for

20

$95,000 ln the Market Development Plan, and that

21

will go a long way to infuse excitement and

22

energy into this civic town of ours.

23

CHAIR KANE:

Mahalo.

Thank you, Ms. Ohigashi.

24

Members, any questions?

25

Hearing none, thank you very much.
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Teri Edmonds followed by -- and forgive

1

2

me if I mispronounce it -- I believe it's Helary

3

Talanoy [sic].

4

MS. EDMONDS:

Aloha, Council.

Thank you for having

5

us here today.

I am Teri Edmonds, and I am the

6

past President of Maui On Stage.

7

of If the Shoe Fits on Market Street.

8

recently elected President of the Wailuku

9

Community Association, also a Member of the

I am the owner
I am

10

Focus Maui Nui Advisory Committee and past Vice

11

President of Kahului Rotary.
Okay.

12

I am going to go kind of fast, so

13

I hope you can catch -- you can stay with me.

14

Actually, I didn't come here to support Maui

15

Community College, even though I do! but this lS

16

part of my presentation.

17

or I got one of the interns from Maui Community

18

College, and it was a two-year program t and

19

accountant.

20

significantly.

21

News.

22

difficulty getting a job afterwards! because he

23

didn't have a four-year degree.

24

to put that in there.

25

Okay.

I did an internship!

And we helped himi he helped us
It was written up in The Maui

And straight A student.

Did have

So I just want

Anyways.

This is really, really funny.
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1

But I am actually here for the 95,000 that

2

MRA -- the OED is offering to help MRA with, and

3

it is their marketing plan.

4

will see -

5

consistently what happens.

so funny.

And I think you

I have been -- this is

I get hit with all these people who want

6
7

us to advertise with them, and here is the very

8

first map in the hardbound book, one of the

9

books that go into the hotel rooms.

Okay.

10

is a map of the Hawaiian Islands.

11

the County seat for the three islands, and

12

Wailuku is not even on there.

13

on there.

14

recognized at all.

15

town.

We are not on there.

Okay.

It
We are

Hana, Kahului is
We are not

And we are a great little

Granted, we are coming out of slum and

16
17

blight.

18

people got in there and hung it -- stuck it out.

19

And you guys -

20

You guys did so many great things.

21

police substation.

22

We are going to help pay for the pickup, the

23

trash pickup, the merchants are, so we are not

24

asking you for money there.

25

We never really got there because some

this is the next great thing.
We got a

We have trash cans coming.

You gave us an Executive Director for
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
afc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 3/30/06

104

1

MRA.

You passed the tax abatement.

2

great.

3

help.

4

haven't funded those recently.

5

there wasn't a lot of -- I guess there wasn't

6

much support for it because we haven't gotten it

7

recently.

8

you some things to show'you.

I am telling you

I

That's so

it is really going to

The past street festivals

But they are awesome

l

I know you

I believe that

I

and I brought

I totally benefited from it.

9

My

10

business is successful now.

Most of that came

11

from the original street festivals you used to

12

have.

13

lots of recognition.

14

sales that day

I had huge business from those and got

Also

15

l

I

Even if there weren't

lots of advertising.

you are helping out Lokahi

16

Pacific.

17

thinking self-sustaining.

18

things

19

young girls all the timel and trying to give

20

them a good education in the business world.

21

And I am glad to see that there are other ways

22

of developing entrepreneurial skills.

23

it.

I see them come and ask for jobs with belly

24

rings

I

25

All right.

I

I love it.

I love agencies that are
They are doing great

small business development.

We need

and you know -- so they could use it.
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So, for the marketing plan, I want to

1
2

just convince you why we are a great reason to

3

invest in us.

4

to be about me, not that it's all about me, it's

5

just because I --

6

MR. RAATZ:

7

MS. EDMONDS:

8

Three minutes.
Okay.

National magazine, Tattoo.

This

This was Hawaii Business Magazine,
written about the development in Wailuku Town.
This is If the Shoe Fits, developing

11

12

And a lot of these happen

is the Tattoo Company in Wailuku.

9

10

Okay.

shoes for wide feet people, Wailuku residents.

13

This is our last street festival that

14

was so awesome, and I will stop with this one.

15

But this was at night.

16

Kids sitting on the shoulders of parents.

17

were dancing to the music, singing, loving it.

18

We had a really great response.

19

Conde Nast Traveler as a destination.

20

number one tourist destination on this island lS

21

lao Valley.

It was pouring rain.
They

Written up in
Our

Why aren't we on the map?

So I ask for some advertising dollars

22

23

for us to help us.

I can pay for my own

24

advertising, but if you guys could help us along

25

with MRA.

I develop -- I give lots of money to
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1

organizations, and so I contribute, and I

2

appreciate you doing that and helping us out.
Thanks, you guys.

3

4

CHAIR KANE:

Members, any questions for the

5

6

Thank you, Ms. Edmonds.

testifier?

7

Hearing none, thank you very much.

8

MS. EDMONDS:

9

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Helary Talanoy [sic].

She might have

10

had to leave.

11

signed up for MCC as a nursing student.
Suzanne Burns, and she will be followed

12

13
14

Members, Helary Talanoy [sic]

by Glenn Goya.
MS. BURNS:

Good morning.

My name is Suzanne Burns,

15

and I am here on behalf of the Office of

16

Economic Development budget for a clerk position

17

at the Maui County Business Resource Center.
I am presently laying the groundwork for

18
19

my own non-profit web-based business, and I use

20

that resource.

21

learning about starting a new business.

22

first contact at Maui County Business Resource

23

Center was Faye, and she is presently a clerk

24

there.

25

type of assistance that I needed.

It is my main resource for

And she effectively narrowed down the
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1

knowledge about each of the SCORE volunteers

2

there, and all of the service organizations

3

affiliated with the resource center, she

4

referred me to MEO's Core Four course with Suzie

5

Theiman, back there.

6

starting my own business and help me set up a

7

business plan, but I still have some questions

8

about non-profits and taxes.

She taught me a lot about

So I have come back to the SCORE

9
10

representatives and Faye, who is the assistant.

11

She's been able to

12

background of each of the SCORE representatives,

13

she was able to assist me in setting me up with

14

the right appointments, for the right people.

15

She also

16

with the intake forms and what to bring to the

17

sessions.

- she prepares me for the counseling

Anna Ribucan

18

because she knows the

l

over there

She does so much.

l

she is the one

19

In charge.

She does -

20

see -

21

community.

22

facilitates seminars.

23

also helps with the loans.

24

doing the administrative work, and we really

25

need somebody, at least one clerk there.

outreaches to the small business
She develops programs.

(808)524-2090

She

She counsels, and she
She's too busy to be
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1

had also a part-time person, you know, that

2

would be helpful because the clerk does need to

3

take a lunch break, does have to go to medical

4

appointments sometimes, does need a vacation.

5

So right now, all we are asking for is one paid

6

position for a clerk.
And so basically, the bottom line is

7

8

that Maui County Business Resource Center offers

9

specialized counseling to individual needs in

10

the business community for startup and growing

11

businesses, and it would not be possible without

12

the administrative support.

13

care of that.
Do you have any questions?

14

15

So please, take

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Burns.

16

Members, any questions?

17

Hearing none, thank you very much for

18

your testimony.
Glenn Goya will be followed by Karen

19
20

21

Fischer.
MR. GOYA:

Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Members of the

22

Council.

My name is Glenn Goya, and I am

23

speaking on behalf of the Nisei Veterans

24

Memorial Center, which I am very passionate

25

about.
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1

My father served in World War II.

He

2

dropped out of college in 1943 as a senior at UH

3

to volunteer.

4

and made a promise that we would finish this

5

center.

Passed away about five years ago,

Before going any further, I'd like to

6
7

thank Mr. Chairman and the Council for the past

8

support, in the past.

9

Lower Main Road, Beach Road.

We have two buildings up,
Two buildings are

10

up, and we are asking support for a third

11

building.
By the way, this is Maui's first

12
13

intergenerational center.

We will be housing a

14

preschool, that can house 17 preschool-aged

15

kids, as well as a Maui Adult Day Care Center,

16

that can house about 45 senior citizens.
So now we are working on the floor plan

17
18

for a third and final building.

This is going

19

to be our education center.

20

one-story 2100-square-foot building that will be

21

the heart and soul of the center.

22

the Nisei Veterans archives and extensive

23

collection of books, oral histories,

24

one-of-a-kind family albums, photographs, and

25

personal letters from World War II.

We are designing a
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1

room will be a space for researchers to Vlew

2

documents and artifacts.
Through oral histories, photographs,

3
4

diaries and letters from the battlefront, the

5

Nisei soldiers will share their love for their

6

country, their fear of battle, and the inkling

7

that theirs was the first steps towards what we

8

call civil rights.

9

In addition, the work room will double

10

as a classroom to host high school and college

11

seminars.

12

between the Nisei soldiers' experience and our

13

nation's current struggle to define individual

14

rights versus national security and currently

15

immigration policy.

Students will consider the parallels

At a special Medal of Honor luncheon,

16

17

June 21, 2003, in Washington D.C., Hilton Hotel,

18

Army Secretary Louis Caldera recalled for the

19

audience the words of wartime Stars and Stripes

20

newspaper columnist, Bill Malden, who wrote

21

admiringly after the war about the Japanese

22

American soldiers he had seen.

23

combat unit in the Army could exceed them in

24

loyalty, hard work, courage, and sacrifice.

25

Hardly a man of them hasn't been decorated at

Quote, "No
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1

least twice and their casualty lists were

2

appalling.

3

our heads and wonder how we would feel if we

4

were wearing the uniform of a country that

5

mistreated our families.

6

conclusion that we would be pretty damn sulky

7

about it, and we marveled at those guys who

8

didn't sulk and showed more character and guts

9

per man than any ten of the rest of us.

A lot of us in Italy used to scratch

Most of us came to the

10

proud to be wearing the same uniform,"

11

quote/unquote.
Thank you very much, and I'd like to

12
13

14

entertain any questions.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Goya.

15

Members, questions for Mr. Goya?

16

Hearing none, thank you for your

17

testimony this morning, sir.

18

MR. GOYA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

21

We were

Thank you.
Karen Fischer.

Ms. Fischer will be

followed by Doug McLeod.
MS. FISCHER:

Aloha.

Good morning, Mr. Chairman,

22

County Council Members, thank you for this

23

opportunity to speak.

24

Fischer, President and CEO of the Maui Arts &

25

Cultural Center.

Excuse me.
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I am here today first to thank you for

1
2

the consistent support of the County for the

3

Maui Arts & Cultural Center.

4

critical piece of our overall financial

5

well-being and of our ability to serve our

6

community.

7

support the Mayor's budget.

8

have actually one line item in the Office of

9

Economic Development:

It's been a

And I am also here to ask you to
We have two -- we

250,000 to support our

10

annual operating activities and 200,000 as a

11

final part of our $500,000 capital request to

12

support our current renovations, upgrades, and

13

construction.
The Maui Arts & Cultural Center hosts

14
15

over 235,000 people a year, something that

16

nobody anticipated at the time that we were

17

built 12 years ago.

18

comprehensive performing and visual arts and

19

cultural center in the State, something that

20

Maui can be extremely proud of.

21

part of Maui's economy.

22

staff of 42 people, and we have a large casual

23

and part-time staff as well, to service the

24

number of activities, which now top 1700

25

activities a year.

We are the finest

We are a strong

We have a full-time
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Most of our budget is spent on island,

1
2

so we feed back into our community.

Our

3

activities stimulate other spending, not only

4

from the artists that we bring in, but in

5

expenditures and related food and beverage,

6

clothing, baby sitting, transportation, all of

7

that kind of activity that keeps us a vital part

8

of the Maui economy.
We help attract and retain talented and

9
10

skilled workforce that's needed on Maui -- in

11

Maui County's businesses.

12

MCC, we are looking at the

13

program and hope that we will also see a

14

non-profit and arts management program as part

15

of MCC's goals.

And as we look at
their business

We have a large impact on local

16
17

businesses.

As I mentioned, hotels, rental

18

cars, all of our food vendors on site.

19

had in the last couple of months over three

20

events with 5,000 people each.

21

money goes back into the community.

We have

All of that food

We create income and benefits to other

22

23

cultural and non-profit groups.

Most recently,

24

this past summer, we hosted the Halauaola, which

25

was the world hula conference, and we were very
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1

proud to do that, and we were very much part of

2

the support of that event.
Also, organizations like MAPA, Zenshin

3
4

Daiko, Montessori School, Baldwin High School

5

Theater Guild, numerous halau that take part in

6

the resources of the center.
We also work collaboratively with

7
8

community groups.

We work with such

9

community -- communities as Hana, Lanai, and

10

Molokai, because we see our mission as serving

11

everybody in Maui County, and our goal is to be

12

able to reach into every household through our

13

programs and community, our programs on our

14

site, and our education programs, which are a

15

real key part of what we do.
Just last year alone, we had over 6,000

16

17

students come through the center for CanDo!

18

Days.

19

really strong part of our program and --

20

MR. RAATZ:

21

MS. FISCHER:

We had 105 such days

I

so it's become a

Three minutes.
-- one of the best field trips on Maui.
We also support the Maui Visitor's

22
23

Bureau efforts in positioning Maui as a

24

desirable location.
But overall, we are about access.

25
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1

are about access to a wide range of arts and

2

cultural activities, and arts education for

3

people of all ages of Maui County.

4

questions?

5

CHAIR KANE:

Any

Thank you, Ms. Fischer.
Members, any questions for Ms. Fischer?

6

7

MS. FISCHER:

8

CHAIR KANE:

Mahalo.
Thank you very much.
Doug McLeod, followed by David Fisher.

9

10

Mahalo.

MR. McLEOD:

Chairman Kane, Council Chair Hokama,

11

Council Members.

My name is Doug McLeod, and I

12

am a property owner and businessman down in

13

Wailuku, and I'm going to be the one going on

14

the MRA, and so thank you.

15

that.

I thank you for

I am here today, as normal, to talk

16
17

about Wailuku things, but before I did that, I

18

really wanted to put in a small plug for the

19

Small Business Resource Center, that the County

20

operates down and -- it's in Kahului.

21

like to see it In Wailuku myself, actually, as

22

another thing, you know, coming back to the

23

core.
But in terms of your budget right now,

24
25

I would

that Small Business Resource Center is really a
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1

good thing.

I have listened to a lot of people

2

talk today, and I have nothing to tell any of

3

you about, you know, the history of Wailuku or

4

the island.

5

obvious.

I am malahini, and I think that's

But I hear a really strong desire to

6
7

learn about how to start businesses here.

You

8

know, people saying they really want to learn

9

how, you know, they can stay on the island, how

10

can their families make it.

And really, the

11

best thing that the County is doing right now

12

probably is the Small Business Resource Center.

13

I help them occasionally with counseling.

14

know that other people do, too.

15

free because people, you know, want -- want

16

local people to be able to make it into the next

17

generation with businesses here.

And I

It's done for

So the plug I am putting in is not for

18
19

the counselors

20

professional staff there so that that operation

21

can keep going.

j

but for trying to get some paid

Enough said about that.

Going back to Wailuku, I did want to

22

23

talk about the MRA budget for a second.

24

that you guys are really giving the MRA a fair

25

shot, here, you know, with the -- if you will
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1

approve the proposed OED budget.

I think the

2

number is 295,000.

3

items in there that are really going to be

4

popular with the merchants down there.

And of that, you have some

The street festivals, that's something

5

6

that people have been angry about for several

7

years.

8

restoring the status quo from prior years rather

9

than taking this somewhere else.

It's really a matter, I think, of

Also, we talked about some of the other

10

11

programs previously, with the trash cans.

12

is basic stuff, but it really does make a

13

difference there on the street.

This

14

So again, I am really here to talk about

15

those two things, Small Business Resource Center

16

and the MRA.
So if you have any questions, I would be

17
18

happy to try to answer those.
I will say, Chairman Kane, that you

19
20

asked about funding for the MRA, and I guess

21

personally, I have some pretty specific ideas,

22

but in fairness to Wayne, I haven't had a chance

23

to talk to him yet.

24

will all be talking about is the cash in-lieu

25

parking agreements that are already on file, and

I think that one thing we
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1

what those need to, kind of, turn in to money

2

that could actually be used to operate something

3

for the MRA.

4

later.

5

CHAIR KANE:

So I think that's a discussion for

Thank you, Mr. McLeod.

6

Members, any questions?

7

Hearing none, thank you for your

8

testimony this morning.
David Fisher.

9
10

11

Mr. Fisher will be

followed by Daniel Kruse.
MR. FISHER:

Aloha, Chairman Kane, Council Members.

12

My name is David Fisher, and I am the -- do the

13

majority of business counseling and education as

14

the Maui Center Director for the Hawaii Small

15

Business Development Center network working out

16

of the Tech Park, Maui Community College, and

17

the Maui County Business Resource Center.

18

have been doing that for -- it will be 16 years

19

ln September.
I am here today -

20

I

I could be here to

21

talk about many of the programs that have been

22

mentioned, the four year college at MCC.

23

is currently a student there now, having just

24

graduated from Baldwin High School.

25

Pacific incubator program, the MEO Business
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1

Development Corporation with their microloan

2

programs.

3

community and the training programs there, and

4

of course, the Maui County Business Resource

5

Center, and the new Maui -- not new, but the new

6

plans for the Maui revitalization

7

Maui Revitalization Agency.

8

acronyms.

9

It's been really crucial in the

- Hawaii --

I am bad with the

Sorry.

All great programs, but I am primarily

10

here to testify today for the Hawaii Business

11

Research Library.

12

Director, is not able to be here today.

13

on the Mainland doing some professional

14

development.

15

Ruth Corn, who is the Library
She's

The Hawaii Business Research Library

16

provides essential information to help Maui

17

entrepreneurs evaluate both opportunities and

18

threats in local, state, national, and

19

international markets.

20

analyzing, organizing, and presenting

21

information in the Maui County Data Book, and by

22

doing custom research for individual businesses.

23

This custom research is probably the most labor

24

intensive, and requires the expertise of highly

25

trained individuals.

It does so by gathering,
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Both Ruth Corn and Sonia King have

1

2

master's degrees in library science as well as

3

many years of experience.

4

Pat Diaz, who is here today, who has the

5

challenging job of deciphering requests for

6

information, answerlng easy -- "easy" questions

7

swiftly, and passing the more difficult

8

questions on to either Ruth, Sonia, or in the

9

case where the entrepreneur is not sure what

10

They are supported by

questions to ask, to me.

11

I

am also involved In helping the

12

entrepreneur make sense of the resulting

13

research and to integrate the research into

14

business plans and financing proposals.

15

entrepreneurs must do their own primary

16

research -- interviewing potential customers,

17

talking to suppliers, and checking out the

18

competition -

19

and industry trends and obtaining the

20

information needed to size markets and

21

understanding industry cost structures, amongst

22

other things, is only reasonably available

23

through the work done by the Hawaii Business

24

Research Library.

25

MR. RAATZ:

understanding industry research

Three minutes.
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MR. FISHER:

If this were not available, most

2

entrepreneurs would be only using their primary

3

research, and this means poor decisions, and

4

also a much harder time convincing bankers and

5

other investors.
You may have read in the newspapers that

6
7

I -- this last week, that I am being honored as

8

the 2006 U.S. Small Business Administration

9

Financial Services Champion for the State of

10

Hawaii.

11

there if it weren't for the work done by the

12

Hawaii Business Research Library, and they

13

wouldn't be there if it weren't for your

14

support.

15

CHAIR KANE:

And I can easily say that I wouldn't be

Mahalo.
Thank you, Mr. Fisher.
Members, any questions for Mr. Fisher?

16
17

Mr. Fisher has provided us written testimony,

18

and we will get those copied and to you as soon

19

as we can.

20

Thank you, sir.

21

Our person -

final person to testify

22

who has signed up is Mr. Kruse, Daniel Kruse.

23

If there's anybody here in the Chamber that has

24

not testified that would like to testify, now lS

25

your opportunity to make yourself recognized
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1

after Mr. Kruse has finished his testimony.

2

Thank you.

3

MR. KRUSE:

Thank you.

Good morning/ Council

4

Members.

Thank you for this opportunity to

5

address you today.

6

am an assistant professor of computer science at

7

Maui Community College.

8

Senate Chair there/ and I was one of the lead

9

faculty members that developed the first

My name is Daniel Kruse.

I

I am also the Academic

10

four year baccalaureate degree for the college/

11

the Applied Business and Information Technology

12

degree.
I spoke to all of you last year at

13
14

length/ and I had to be pulled off/ but this

15

year/ I am planning to be much briefer/ thinking

16

that might work better.
Last year/ I provided a lot of facts and

17
18

statistics, including

- so I want to just boil

19

it down to three points today_

20

effort that's being made at the college is one

21

that is strongly supported by the people of Maui

22

County.

23

have been done in the past, like Maui Focus -- I

24

am sorry -- Focus Maui Nui, that was the number

25

one priority.

One is that this

If you look at some of the things that
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And if you check with the people of the

1

2

County, it is, if not the top priority, one of

3

the top priorities of the people of the County.
We at the college are accountable to the

4
5

people of the County, as are you, so it is in

6

our best interest to listen to what they have to

7

say, and what they are interested in doing.
The other one, maybe, that you haven't

8
9

heard so much from some of the other people here

10

today -

and by the way I support all the things

11

that have been said by the other people here --

12

lS

I think the idea of enlightened self interest

13

lS

one that should be looked at at length.

14

effort would improve the quality of life for the

15

people of Maui County.

16

it also is an awfully good investment

17

monetarily.

This

But in addition to that,

Last year, I provided some statistics

18
19

from the University of Hawaii in Hilo, and the

20

benefits to the community when there's a four

21

year institution.

22

invested in getting this started would be more

23

than returned by what would occur after the

24

institution is in place.

25

I can dig up that information again.

So the money that would be

If you are interested,
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it to you guys last year.
So, but more importantly, also, the

2

3

quality of life, like teachers, social workers,

4

nurses.

5

all of us in the quality of life in the County.

6

And then my last point would be what we

These are all things that would help

7

hear all the time is that this is the State's

8

responsibility.

9

but people have been talking about doing this

And I don't disagree with that,

10

for a long time here.

11

Mayor here, she was talking about having a

12

four-year institution here.

13

20 years from now, do we still want to be

14

talking about this, or do we want to have done

15

something to make this happen?

16

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Kruse.

testifier?
Hearing none, thank you very much for

19

20

So the question is,

Members, any questions for our

17
18

When Linda Lingle was the

your testimony.

21

MR. KRUSE:

22

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Again, is there anybody here who has not

23

testified that would like to testify?

24

your time to approach the podium.

Now is

Seeing nobody approach, Members, without

25
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1

objections, we will close testimony for today's

2

meeting.

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.
.

Thank you very much .

. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .

Members, the Chair is aware of the time,

7

and because we have a lot of departments to get

8

through, I would like to take this opportunity

9

to open the floor again to Mr. Andaya to provide

10

us with any additional opening comments, and

11

then let him start through on the grants in the

12

Budget Ordinance for the Human Concerns area.
And when we get to about five to 12:00,

13
14

Members, the Chair will call for a brief recess.

15

The intent is to see if we can recess this

16

component of the meeting to deal with grants

17

overall until Monday, probably, and then try to

18

incorporate where we were going to originally

19

start with CIP on Monday.
So we are going to take a few minutes

20
21

just to juggle that around to make sure that we

22

can have a smooth transition and allow us to

23

proceed without getting bogged down with the

24

work.
So, Members, we will take that up in

25
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1

about 15 minutes.

2

Mr. Andaya, good morning, and thank you for your

3

patience.

4
5

MR. ANDAYA:

But in the meantime,

Good morning, Mr. Chair.

I don't have

any further comments.
We have nearly 100 grants in our

6
7

Department, and we have a list of grants that

8

are either new or existing grants that have been

9

either increased or decreased.
So I am not sure how you want us to

10
11

proceed, Mr. Chair, if you want us to go down

12

that list, or we can just open this up for

13

questioning at this time.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Members, just to provide some order, why

15

don't we go ahead and go through the sections

16

that are provided on that handout.

17

single page, on two sides, handout from

18

Mr. Ginoza.

19

Childhood/Child Care Programs that are listed,

20

and then we will go through each of those

21

programs, and we'll see how far we can get.

24

25

It starts off with the Early

Mr. Hokama.

22

23

It is a

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman, if I may have a general

question -CHAIR KANE:

Please.

Absolutely.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

-- just for the overall grants

approach from this Department.

3

Mr. Andaya, can you share with the

4

Committee this morning how your Department

5

approached this section of the budget?

6

come up with a certain ballpark figure, or

7

percentage increase, and then see what the

8

amount of grants or types of programs that the

9

Department felt deserving to be included?

Did you

Or

10

you folks took all the grants and say, we will

11

just let Council decide what to cut, what to

12

keep?
Can you share with us how your

13
14

Department approached this program, please?

15

MR. ANDAYA:

Yes, Councilmember.

Mr. Chair.

16

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

17

MR. ANDAYA:

Our Department received requests from

18

various agencies, and they came to us telling

19

us, I guess, one of the common reasons is

20

increase In operational expenses.

21

on that, we looked at what they were proposing,

22

and we appropriated moneys accordingly.

And so, based

We also saw if there were certain needs

23
24

in the community, for instance, homelessness,

25

things like that, we also tried to put more
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moneys into those areas as well.
VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

I am still trying to grasp what

3

was the general approach, you know, because your

4

request is about 15 percent higher than last

5

year, totally.

6

about the whole

7

not specific items of the grants.

And right now, I am talking
your whole grants program,

8

So I am just wondering, you know, was

9

the instructions to come up with a 15 percent

10

bigger budget this year, or you folks just went

11

out and got the community's needs, and then,

12

what you presented to Mr. Ginoza and other

13

senior managers, they decided what is before us

14

in this proposal?

15

MR. ANDAYA:

Actually, the Mayor did want to increase

16

certain areas.

He wanted to give more moneys to

17

social programs.

18

to agencies and found out, you know, where the

19

need was.

20

accordingly.

So based on that, we went back

And then we appropriated moneys

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And one last question, Mr. Chair.

Proceed.
Was it a factor whether or not it

24

would be a continuing obligation or

25

responsibility of the County or not, or would
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1

or versus a one-time funding request?

2

matter to the Department?

3

MR. ANDAYA:

Did it

Some of these are operating expenses,

4

increases in operating expenses.

5

bigger items are actually one -- one-time

6

appropriations.

7

Veterans, 300,000, that would be a one-time

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

MR. ANDAYA:

10

Some of the

For instance, the Nisei

That's correct.

-- a one time appropriation.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Yeah.

I am just trying to get a

11

sense of how your Department approached this

12

program, Mr. Andaya.
I am done.

13
14

15

Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

16

17

Thank you very much,

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah.

Mr. Chair, if we are

18

talking about general, generally grants, before

19

we get into the specifics

20
21

22

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

Before we get into the specifics,

yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

23

What does the Department use as its

24

criteria between determining whether or not

25

or for determining whether or not an item is a
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 3/30/06

130

1

line item or will corne into one of the category

2

grant pools?

3

for putting things as line items?

4

MR. ANDAYA:

Do you have a criteria for that,

Councilmember, I will defer that

5

question to our Grants Administrator, Wendy

6

Stebbins.

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

MS. STEBBINS:

Ms. Stebbins.
Mr. Chair, Council Members, to

9

determine if they're line items, that lS their

10

choice to go in for line items, or they have a

11

choice to go in for the competitive process, the

12

Community Partnership Grants.

13

leave that up to their discretion to go

14

either -- either way.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So basically, we

So if the Council has --

excuse me, Mr. Chair.

17

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

If the Council has put in a

19

line item for a particular grant, then you just

20

automatically put it as a line item in your next

21

proposal?

Is that what happens?

22

MS. STEBBINS:

Yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Does the Department

24

use -- in determining who is going to get

25

grants, other than the Grants Review Committee
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1

grants! do you operate under a request for

2

proposal! or a purchase of service! or a needs

3

assessment study?

4

do you all do?

5

MS. STEBBINS:

Right.

What

what kinds of things

Not at this time.

We are not

6

at the request for proposal or purchase of

7

service process at this time.

8

account the current needs assessments! the 2004

9

Maui Voices and the Focus Maui Nui.

We do take into

I know that

10

the Grants Review Committee are using those as

11

tools this year In their funding

12

recommendations.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And when you -- when you

14

folks are looking at the grant requests or

15

applications -- or not applications.

16

When you are determining -- and I want

17

to separate the Grants Review Committee items

18

from everything else.

19

are not about the Grants Review Committee items.

20

These are about the other ones! your categories!

21

I guess! homelessness! self-sufficiency! culture

22

and arts! early childhood! those categories.

23

Okay.

So these questions

How do you determine who gets those

24

grants?

25

your Department, a committee that looks at it!

Do you have! in yourselves, or within
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1

or who makes the judgment as to which

2

organization gets what kind of grant?

3
4

MS. STEBBINS:

Excuse me.

I am just thinking about

your question.
For like self-sufficiency and the

5

6

substance abuse and the homelessness, that's

7

determined by our Director's office, where the

8

needs are, and what organizations are doing well

9

at providing those needs.
For the other categories, those are

10
11

determined by how the applicant applies for the

12

line item.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

So is it like a

14

first-come, first-served, kind of thing, or do

15

you have a deadline for applications?

16

for the culture and the art grants, as a pool.

17

So you just -- you -- I mean how does that work?

18
19

20

MS. STEBBINS:

23

Currently, all the culture and the art

grants go through the GRC.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Oh, they are GRC.

Okay.

The Early Childhood Programs, they are

21
22

Let's say

GRC also?
MR. ANDAYA:

No, Councilwoman, that -- that goes

24

before the coordinator, actually.

25

coordinator determines --

The
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

coordinator?

3

MR. ANDAYA:

Oh, the early childhood

The early childhood coordinator

4

determines where the moneys should go, and it's

5

based on the early childhood network, and just

6

based on that, you know, seeing where -- where

7

moneys could be used.

8
9

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Then the youth center

programs, or youth centers is under GRC, is it
not?

11

MS. STEBBINS:

Correct.

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

MS. STEBBINS:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

How about youth programs?

It's under the GRC as well.
Okay.

I mean, I guess the

15

rest -- we can get into more specifics on the

16

particular grant requests.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

17

18

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Tavares.

19

Any further questions before we proceed?

20

Mr. Pontanilla.

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

The 2004 needs assessment, and I think

22

23

that's the one that the County did, and the

24

other one was combination of the community, the

25

Focus Maui Nui.

Looking at both studies, I note
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1

there are differences in the priorities.

When

2

you do have differences in the priorities, how

3

do you -- how does the Department focus on, you

4

know, what is more important based on those two

5

studies?

6

MR. ANDAYA:

Mr. Chair.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Andaya.

8

MR. ANDAYA:

We, again, look at the entire network of

9

services, and based on that, we determine what

10

needs there are.

For instance, there could be

11

the agency out there that's already providing

12

services for those needs, or there could be the

13

State that's providing those -- those services

14

for those needs.
So we primarily look at the network as a

15
16

whole, and then determine where we should put

17

moneys to, what services we should put moneys

18

to.

19
20
21
22

23

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Thank

you.
CHAIR KANE:

Any further questions, Members, in this

area?
Mr. Mateo, followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Chairman.

Good morning.
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1

MR. ANDAYA:

Good morning.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Can you give us an idea of how

3

many organizations that actually apply that

4

that's not funded, they are denied?

5

MS. STEBBINS:

Mr. Chair/ Council Members, there were

6

approximately eight new agencies that applied

7

for the Community Partnership Grants this year.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

9

MS. STEBBINS:

And all eight got funding?

We have not gone through the hearing

10

process yet.

11

of April.

The hearing process is in the end

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

13

MS. STEBBINS:

14

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Oh/ that's the GRC process?

Right.
Okay.

So those that are not

15

with the GRC process, you have a timetable in

16

terms of determining whether they should be

17

funded or not?

18

MR. ANDAYA:

At this point/ they have already come to

19

us, you know/ with requests and whatnot/ and so

20

they're reflected in this year's budget/ you

21

know/ if they are asking for line items.

22
23

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Sorry.

Yeah/ so we picked up eight new

programs, eight new grants?
MS. STEBBINS:

Those were for the -- I am sorry --

for the Community Partnership Grant applicants.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

I'm done.

Ms. Tavares.
Yeah, thank you.

I am so busy separating out the GRC

4
5

things, I forgot to get back to the GRC.

The

6

GRC, Grants Review Committee, makes their

7

decisions on the categories that we were talking

8

about, like the youth centers, culture and the

9

arts programs, etc.

Is it the Department that

10

places a ceiling on the amount of money that can

11

go to an agency?

12

MS. STEBBINS:

Mr. Chair, Council Members, no, the
they have in the

13

GRC is the one that if they

14

past put a cap or a ceiling on what the agencies

15

can apply for, but they are not doing that this

16

cycle.

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
placing a cap?

19

MS. STEBBINS:

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

They are not -- they are not

No, they are not.
Well, that's a relief.

Just trying to make some kind of sense

22

out of that whole thinking, but anyway.

23

So we will just wait and see what happens with

24

the GRC results because they are going to make

25

their decisions prior to our final decisions,
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
afc: (808)524-2090 Fax: (808)524-2596

Okay.

BF 3/30/06

1

2
3

4

137

and I think it was designed that way.
MS. STEBBINS:

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10

The hearings are the

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Any further questions, general

questions, regarding grants before we proceed?
The other question, I think, was the

8
9

Right.

last two weeks in April.

5

6

Correct.

Yeah.

double-dip question that we have asked in the
past, Members.

So we will ask again.

Are agencies able to go both ways, go

11

12

GRC as well as for line item?

13

there any ones that you can highlight for us,

14

please?

15

MS. STEBBINS:

And if so, are

Mr. Chair, at this point in time, in

16

the GRC meetings, they have discussed that

17

topic, and they are going to be asking each

18

agency that question at the hearings.

19

it's for the same program, they have decided

20

that they won't get funding both ways.

21

possibly for two different programs, then they

22

will consider funding the two different

23

programs.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

And if

If it's

Just to take it a step further, then, if

it is determined that they are asking for moneys
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1

from two sources for the same program, are they

2

going to be automatically excluded from the GRC

3

process, and therefore have to rely on the line

4

item, or are they going to be forced to make a

5

choice at that point in time and then make the

6

determination?
If you know, great.

7

If you don't know,

8

then we would like to get something in writing,

9

if possible.

10

MS. STEBBINS:

11

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.
Okay.

That would be good.
Members, so we will get that as

12

well so we understand their processes a little

13

clearer.
Okay.

14

With that, Members, if you don't

15

mind, Mr. Andaya -- and Members, there's no

16

sense of rush here, but I will give you a note

17

that we have checked with Pacific Wings.

18

weather is fine.

19

weather is acceptable.

20

meeting for tonight on schedule, and therefore

21

our intent is to try and wrap it up before our

22

lunch break, so that you can take care of your

23

personal needs.

The

They're saying that the
So we will keep the Hana

24

The Chair intends to go past, a little

25

past 12 o'clock, Members, so that we can start
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1

the ball rolling in this area and see how far we

2

can go.
And again, Mr. Andaya, don't feel

3

4

rushed, you know, don't feel like you are on a

5

clock or anything.

6

part.

We will take care of that

Members, any questions in the Early

7

8

Childhood Childcare Program area?

The listings

9

provided us from FY '03 through the Fiscal Year

10

'07 Mayor's proposed figures, you have your

11

numbers there.

12

area?

Are there any questions in this

Seeing none, Members, we will move on.

13

14

And if you do come up with a question, we can

15

come back to it just for a final -- a final

16

pass.
On the Community Partnerships, I know

17
18

that's one that we are going to be waiting for.
Mr. Hokama.

19

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

My apologies, Mr. Chair.

21

On the early childhood, regarding like

22

MEO's Headstart, the program with the increase

23

for another 14,500, would Mr. Andaya or an MEO

24

representative speak on the variance, the

25

difference?
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1

MS. STEBBINS:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

MS. STEBBINS:

Mr. Chair, Council Members.
Ms. Stebbins.
The increase is basically for

4

operating costs, insurance, cost of living, and

5

mileage for their employees and the programs.

6
7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Overhead.

So it's their

overhead.

8

MS. STEBBINS:

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

CHAIR KANE:

The Chair apologizes.

10

Overhead, correct.

Okay.

Thank you.
One more

11

little note, folks.

For those in the

12

audience -- and I will try to do this every day

13

so people understand -- we are in the

14

information gathering portion.

15

anybody here in the Chamber, we want you to know

16

that there are no decision making that's going

17

to take place for the next several weeks, and

18

that our intentions for decision making won't be

19

until between the third and the fourth week of

20

April.

So if there's

So again, we -- the Chair was remiss in

21

22

stating that up-front, but we will make sure

23

that we get that line in every morning when we

24

start our meeting so people understand where we

25

are at and where we are going.

Thank you.
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Any other questions in early childhood,

1
2

Members, on the overhead, besides the overhead

3

costs for MEO Headstart, Maui, Molokai

4

after-school programs?
Community Partnership Grants, Members,

5

there's details that are -- I believe,

6

the

7

Mr. Ginoza, if you can help us, when you list

8

details on page 9-23, that's of our Program

9

Budget or Details page?

10
11
12

MR. GINOZA:

That's on the Program Budget, the Budget

proposal.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Members, any questions in this area?

13

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

Chair.

And if you can provide -

Oh, I'm sorry,

Ms. Tavares, go ahead.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I'm sorry.

No, go ahead.
The way that -- working off

20

of the document from the Budget Office, if

21

Community Partnership Grants is a line that

22

where there's an increase of $200,000, and then

23

there's -- following that is Community

24

Partnership for Older Adults, Community Work Day

25

Program, etc., etc.

But these are -- is it my
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1

understanding that these are not ones that go

2

through the GRC?

3

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza?

Are you prepared to

4

respond?

This is your document we are noting

5

that comment off of.

6

MR. GINOZA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

sorry.

9

MR. GINOZA:

10
11

13

correct.

Mr. Chair, yes, that's -- that's

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

So it just happens to

be -- I'm sorry.

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

They look like the line items

the Council put in.
MS. STEBBINS:

15

Because they look -- I am

I'm sorry.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

14

I am -- I am -- I am --

Go ahead.
It just happens to be under

the heading of Community Partnership Grants?

19

MS. STEBBINS:

Correct.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Perhaps we need another

21

heading for that, that section.

Because I think

22

it could be a little misleading because it looks

23

like that the 200,000 -- I mean, the 1.4 million

24

for Community Partnership Grants includes the

25

ones on the bottom for some reason or -- you
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1

know, I don't want that to be misleading because

2

that's totally separate.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Okay.

Members, so the

4

distinction is that first line, the bold

5

letters, Community Partnership Grants, which the

6

details are in the Program Budget 9-23,

7

represents a total of $1.424 million, which is

8

an increase of 200,000, and everything under

9

that are the line item requests coming through

10

the Department, and the Department's proposal to

11

this body for consideration.

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Right.

Ms. Tavares, anything further?
I just was -- is this the

15

time to ask what that other $200,000 increase

16

for?

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

1S

Absolutely.
Okay.

If I may ask that

19

question.

Under the Community Partnership

20

Grants, the additional 200,000 from -- over the

21

year, to

22

MS. STEBBINS:

last year to this year.
That will be, again, determined by the

23

GRC.

24

needs in the community.

25

That's just additional funds for essential

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Oh, okay.

It wasn't tied to
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any specific thing?

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

2

3

All right.

CHAIR KANE:

The funds were plugged in by the Mayor's

4

proposal, though.

5

the 200,000 to see what -- what disbursement

6

will take place with that additional 200,OOO?

7

MS. STEBBINS:

8

CHAIR KANE:

Correct.
Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Hokama.

9

10

They are the ones who added

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just a quick question for

11

clarification.

12

that states about Ohana Makamae's 2007 request,

13

48,672.

14

about funding category due to line item

15

requests, and then we also have a line item

16

request.

17

only one that is on both ledgers.

18

On 9-23, you have a footnote

You have it listed with your comment

MS. STEBBINS:

Kind of explain, since this is the

Okay.

Correct.

They have applied for

19

a line item, as you can see on the earlier page,

20

and if the line item is approved, then they are

21

going to withdraw their CPG request.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Okay.

So that's the double-dip lssue.
That's the wrong order.

Ms. -- I'm sorry.

Mr. Hokama, a yield

just for Ms. Tavares's comment?
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1

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Please.

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares.
I am kind of puzzled by that

4

response because the GRC process is before ours,

5

so they should be going for the GRC partnership

6

things before they -- the Council considers it.

7

Because we don't make any decisions until later.

8
9

MS. STEBBINS:

Right.

We prepared -- when we

prepared this, they were -- they are currently

10

getting a Community Partnership Grant, and when

11

we prepared this, we were under the impression

12

that they may still, but then they actually were

13

going for a line item as well.
So they have put 1n an application for a

14
15

Community Partnership Grant this year, but they

16

are going to withdraw it if they do get a line

17

item.

18
19

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Thank you.

Doesn't

work like that.
CHAIR KANE:

The bottom line 1S is that our decision

21

for the line item won't be made until after the

22

GRC.
So again, they are going to be faced

23
24

with that question, Member Tavares, is what we

25

talked about earlier, Members.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR KANE:

Right.

Which one are they going to go for, one

3

or the other?

They can't have both.

4

everybody would be doing the same thing.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

CHAIR KANE:

Otherwise,

Exactly.

And this is no reflection on this

7

individual group, but as far as the process, we

8

need to understand specifically how that process

9

is going to work.
Mr. Andaya, if you can help us

10
11

12

understand this, please.
MR. ANDAYA:

Mr. Chair, I also understand from past

13

experience that the GRC has withdrawn moneys

14

from agencies that -- that did receive line

15

items, so I know that -- that has happened

16

before, so that that prevents double-dipping,

17

your concern.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, the Chair will ask staff

19

to go follow up, and we will get something In

20

writing just to help us

21

MR. ANDAYA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

solve this issue or make a -- get

resolve to this.
Ms. Tavares.

24

25

Yeah, we can

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair, I only, you know,
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1

bring this up because I think it's unfair to the

2

organizations who are applying for grants under

3

the GRC, and -- and also thinking they want to

4

do one with the Council because if they -- if

5

they missed one opportunity at the GRC, it's

6

like the Council is a fallback opportunity.

7

if they count on the Council and then it doesn't

8

happen, they haven't gone to the GRC at all, I

9

mean the timing of it is such that these folks

But

10

who would like to apply for grants should apply

11

for grants not assuming that they can get a line

12

item from the Council.
And because, you know, it's more

13
14

difficult for us to make those kinds of

15

decisions because we have a million other things

16

to deal with.

17

those folks who are thinking about, you know,

18

line items, and changing from GRC grants to a

19

line item grant, need to go through the GRC

20

process and not depend on coming to the Council.

21

CHAIR KANE:

But I would encourage all of

Thank you.
And I know, Mr. Hokama, you yielded the

22

23

floor, so I give you back the floor before we

24

recognlze anybody else.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

No, Chairman.

Thank you very
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much for those questions.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Ms. Johnson.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Correct me if I'm wrong, but

4

I know that in the past, Women Helping Women

5

used to go through the Community Partnership

6

Grant, and then I believe that because it was a

7

program that we, as a Council, supported, we put

8

them in as a permanent line item, and I think

9

that may be where some of this movement is

10

coming.

Because if we feel strongly that it is

11

a line item and it needs to be funded

12

consistently, I think that gives the assurance

13

to the agency that they won't have to be

14

wondering from year to year are they going to

15

survive.
So I think this is where the mixed

16
17

message lS coming in.

Now, that's my opinion.

18

But I think that other agencies are also seeing,

19

if you believe in us, whether it's a Boys &

20

Girls Club or whether it's Big Brothers/Big

21

Sisters, I think that also happened with them,

22

where we put in specific items.

23

we, when we get to that point, we need to not

24

also send out a mixed message ourselves and

25

figure out how we are going to approach this.

So I -- I think
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So I have no problem with agencies that

1

2

we consistently support coming in for a line

3

item, as long as they meet all the grants

4

criteria.

5

decision we will have to make, but I think that

6

may be where this is coming from.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

7

8

But I think that a -- that's a

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
Any further questions in this area?

9

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, I get one question.

Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you.

13

In regards to, you know, having

14

agencies, you know, what you explained earlier,

15

that either they can go to a line item or go

16

with a competitive grant.

17

agency that comes in for a line item as well as

18

a competitive grant, can we say up front that

19

choose one of the two?

20

budget, is there a mechanism to identify these

21

so-called double-dippers?

22
23

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

When we do have an

Or when we do the

Mr. Andaya, are you prepared to respond

at this time?
MR. ANDAYA:

Mr. Chair, that's a good question,

Councilmember, and I guess it would be difficult
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1

to know who came in to -- who came in for CPG

2

grants unless you had a list, you know.

3

one way we could do it is to provide a list like

4

that to you, to the Members of the Council, so

5

at least you know that these agencies are

6

applying for CPG grants.

7
8

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

area?
Ms. Tavares.

13
14

Thank you very much.

Further questions, Members, in this

11

12

Yeah, if you could, that

would be good.

9

10

I guess

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Haven't we traditionally

15

received that list through the budget -- budget

16

process here?

17

has made their recommendations to the Mayor that

18

we get that list?

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

CHAIR KANE:

After the Grants Review Committee

Yes.

We will follow up.

Go ahead.

We will

21

go ahead and follow up, Ms. Tavares, to make

22

sure.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

MS. STEBBINS:

Okay.

And, Ms. Stebbins, you have comment?
I believe so, that you do receive the
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1

list after the recommendations are made.

2

could provide the list of applicants prior to

3

after our deadline to -- to the Council.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

But we

We can talk with staff

5

about the timing of it to see which one is more

6

appropriate for us.

7
8

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.
We will do a follow-up as

well.
Any further questions in this area,

9
10

Members?

Community Partnership Grants, anything

11

with respects to the specific line item

12

requests?

13

If there's any specific questions, we can get

14

into those details at a future point, but this

15

is just the first go-round, Members.

Again, this is the cursory review.

Moving on to Culture and Arts Grants --

16

17

also, you can see that there's a dollar amount

18

and then there's -- underneath, they have

19

specific line items.
Moving on to the Homeless Program and

20

21

the accompanying line items.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Questions?

Question.

Mr. Hokama.
Mr. Andaya -- Mr. Andaya,

normally, you know, there's an agency or
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1

something that, you know, we look forward to

2

providing a service under line items, but you

3

have a request of 282,000, and it reads like a

4

proviso, planning/design/development/

5

construct -- or construction, supportive living

6

mixed-use housing, and/or social/educational

7

facilities.

What is this?

8

MR. ANDAYA:

Mr. Chair.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah, and before you answer, we are not

10

11
12
13

there yet, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm sorry.

Oh, I'm sorry,

Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

But we are just about to get there, so

14

if I can, just if there's any questions in the

15

Homeless Program.

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR KANE:

No, no, don't worry about that.
I'm sorry.

If there's any questions there?
Yeah.

Seeing none -- oh, I'm sorry.
Ms. Tavares, go ahead, question.

22

23

My apologies.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

It was just an information

24

part, right, so we are not going to get into

25

discussion about the Homeless Program?
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1

CHAIR KANE:

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

4

7
8

Okay.

I will hold it for the

decision.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Hokama, go ahead and, Mr. Andaya,

5

6

Yeah, yeah.

you can respond, please.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Again my apologies, Mr. Chairman

and Mr. Andaya.

9

CHAIR KANE:

No, that's okay.

10

MR. ANDAYA:

Oh no, no problem, Councilmember,

11

Mr. Chair.
This is -- we had a number of agencies

12
13

that came to us requesting moneys for -- for

14

construction and for other -- for other -- like

15

for buildings, and whatnot.

16

them come to us, and the total request came out

17

to quite a bit, you know.

18

these -- we

19

moneys, and what we are planning to do is have

20

these agencies come to us and submit

21

applications or submit proposals.

22

based on that, we would determine, like,

23

where

24
25

We had a number of

And so these

- we set aside this amount of

And then,

where these moneys should go to.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So is this something like what my

colleague at the left end of the Chamber
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1

indicated regarding a request for proposal type

2

of concept, and --

3
4

MR. ANDAYA:

Yeah, something

something similar to

that, Councilmember, yes.
And it's only because we -- we just had

5

6

more, a lot more agencies than we do moneys to

7

give them.

8

way to -- to determine who should be getting

9

these moneys.

10

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

11
12
13

So we thought this would be the best

Chairman, if I may ask another

question, please.
CHAIR KANE:

Before you move on, in this area we will

ask staff --

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

CHAIR KANE:

Specifically about this.

-- yeah, we will ask staff to send a

16

letter, Members, to the Department and ask them

17

to give us a written explanation to this

18

request.

19

so we can get a breakdown and provide more

20

explanation.
Proceed, Mr. Hokama.

21
22

As you can see, it is a new request,

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah, that would be appreciated,

23

Mr. Chairman, particularly so we can understand

24

what the general parameters of an RFP might be,

25

Mr. Andaya, so we can understand your intentions
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and your -- the goal you want to achieve.
But also, have you been supporting or

2

3

your Department been supporting legislation such

4

as Senator Chun Oakland, who is looking at

5

providing State funding to -- to -- in this

6

particular area regarding homeless and housing

7

programs?

8

initiatives and requesting some kind of funding

9

support?

Have you folks been supporting her

Because just this week, I believe, her

10
11

Committee has taken up the issue, and we have

12

turned in testimony from the Council side

13

supporting the Senator's intentions from her

14

Committee to the full Senate.

15

Department supported and requested the type of

16

funds?

17

MR. ANDAYA:

Have your

They have contacted our office and asked

18

us for our, I guess, our opinion or our

19

testimony regarding this.

20

believe we have.

21

is Rudy Esquer, who is on Oahu today.

22

Governor is having some kind of homelessness

23

summit, a Statewide homelessness summit.

24

that's the reason why he is there.

25

otherwise, I -- I would defer the question to

So I believe -- I

The person they called was
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1

him.

2

in writing regarding that.

3

I am not sure.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

But I can get back to you

No, I am just

I am just

4

curious, Mr. Andaya, the State has, as we all

5

know, funds available, and they are trying to

6

address specific issues regarding education,

7

health care facilities, and services, and

8

housing, including homelessness, so I just share

9

that with you.

Within our lobbying efforts

10

there, it seems to be the main subject matters

11

that the Legislators are concerned with.

12

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Mr. Andaya, if you can, on the next

14
15

item, the affordable housing/supportive living

16

housing for Hana, apparently, that was something

17

that was granted last year, and it's there again

18

this year.

19

whether or not that was a one-time, or if this

20

was intended to be recurring?

21

some information on that?

22

MR. ANDAYA:

So if you can provide a status on

Can you glve us

Mr. Chair, I have our Housing Division

23

Administrator in the gallery_

If I could have

24

him come up here and talk a little bit about

25

this line.
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CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

If you can introduce your

resource division head person.
MR. ANDAYA:

Yes, Mr. Chair.

This is Edwin Okubo.

4

He is the Housing Division Administrator for the

5

County of Maui.

6
7

8
9

CHAIR KANE:

Good morning, Mr. Okubo.

Thank you for

being here.
MR. OKUBO:

Good mornlng, Mr. Chairman, Council

Members.

10

The 225,000 that was appropriated in the

11

current year's budget, a request for those funds

12

had been made to our Department.

13

the developer's representative that there is a

14

proviso about the land for the project having to

15

be -- I guess it requires a contract where the

16

company will donate the land to the developer

17

for this affordable housing project, and so we

18

informed them about the proviso and the need to

19

encumber those funds before the end of the

20

Fiscal Year.

21

We informed

They had not submitted the documentation

22

that we need to enter into this grant agreement

23

with us yet, so -- and at the present time,

24

that's what the status is.

25

In terms of whether they are going to be
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1

able to meet that deadline, I am not certain.

2

am not certain as to why it is in the proposed

3

budget also, whether, you know, it's -- the

4

intent is to have funding for two appropriations

5

of 225,000, or if it's just because of the

6

timing situation, maybe they think they

7

needed -- they are going to use it in the next

8

Fiscal Year.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

I

Members, Mr. Carroll, you want to

10

make additional comment?

11

that this proposal is here to provide additional

12

time to finish up the agreement for the land.

13

And, Members, you recall the proviso that we

14

made last year.

15
16

17

And you know, assuming

So thank you, Mr. Okubo, for bringing
that back to light.
And that the proposal is there not to be

18

for this year as well as next year, but it is a

19

one-time situation.

20
21

22
23

But, Mr. Carroll, if you can provide
some additional comment, we'd appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Thank you, Chair.

Yes this is a one-time proposal, and

24

this was for the initial surveying and the

25

initial work on an affordable housing project.
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1

Because of some changes that occurred

2

with the original entity that was going to be

3

responsible for the land and oversight, and we

4

have somebody else now, which incidentally

5

should be worked out -

6

in the next two weeks or so.

7

that that will be ready by that time, and then

8

we can get started and encumber the money.

I just talked to them
So we are hopeful

However, because of the way things go,

9
10

and because of the speed of getting of all this

11

together, there is concern that we might not be

12

able to make it by the July 1st deadline.

13

that's where we are at right now.

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

16

CHAIR KANE:

And

Okay.
Thank you.

So we will keep an eye on that, Members,

17

yeah, to make sure that we get it applied

18

appropriately.

Okay.

Thank you very much.

19

Mr. Okubo, thank you.

20

Any further questions for Mr. Okubo

21

while he is sitting here and we are dealing

22

with -- any housing question, Members?
Seeing none, Mr. Okubo, thank you for

23
24

your presence this morning.

Appreciate it.

Members, we are turning the page over

25
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1

onto Self-Sufficiency Programs, which has been

2

funded $175,000, and then in addition, you have

3

your various line item requests that are for

4

your review and question.
Mr. Hokama, followed by Mr. Molina.

5

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Andaya, except for the -- a

7

specific citing, which is a social services

8

campus at the Old Maui High School site, what is

9

the difference between this request and the

10

earlier one I asked you about, that 282,OOO?

11

is just -- that's another way to describe a

12

similar project?

13

MR. ANDAYA:

The 282,000, I mean, Old Maui High

14

School could -- could apply for -- for these

15

moneys as well, the 282,000.

16

separate, it's a separate line item,

17

Councilmember.

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

But this is a

I understand that.

I am asking

19

if this is just another way of increasing your

20

funding for the same thing?

21

MR. ANDAYA:

It

Not -

not necessarily, Councilmember.

22

Say we find that there's another agency that is

23

in dire need of those moneys, the 282,000, then

24

those moneys could easily go to that agency and

25

not to the Old Maui High School.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Could it go -- the 282 could go

to the Old Maui High School?
MR. ANDAYA:

It could.

They could -- I mean, we are

4

not precluding anyone from applying for those

5

funds, so they could very well apply for those

6

moneys as well, yes.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

MR. ANDAYA:

As well as the 200,000?

Yes, Councilmember.
But you know, we also take into

9

10

consideration, if -- I mean, if -- if they are

11

given the 200,000, then of course that will

12

weigh in whether or not we would give them

13

portions of the 282,000, so ...

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Do you have a conceptual

15

regarding what the campus -- the intention of

16

this campus at the Old Maui High School is

17

supposed to be?

18

MR. ANDAYA:

That's one of the reasons why we are

19

asking for the 200,000, Councilmember, to come

20

up with a conceptual plan, to look at what the

21

needs are, and see whether it would be a good

22

fit for this campus.

23

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you very much, Mr. Andaya.

24

MR. ANDAYA:

Thank you.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Hokama, we will agaln -- your Chair
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1

will ask your indulgence, Members, to ask for a

2

written response to the specific request for the

3

social service campus at the Old Maui High

4

School site.

5

know that there's ongoing work in that area,

6

let's get some distinctions made clear as far as

7

parameters.

8

Department for a timely response.

9
10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
CHAIR KANE:

So we will get that out to the

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Thank you.
Mr. Molina followed by Ms. Tavares.

11
12

Because it's a new request and we

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Andaya, staying on that same

13
14

subject, so this -- my understanding is this is

15

for a study, $200,000 for a study to decide what

16

lS,

17

the Old Maui High School campus.

18

networked with the community as well?

19

know the County has been involved with the Old

20

Maui High School Board members, but have you

21

gone out to meet with folks out there in Paia to

22

get input from them?

23

you know, going to be placed over in that,

MR. ANDAYA:

Have you
I mean, I

At this point, what we have been doing

24

is working with the Friends of Old Maui High

25

School.

In fact Barbara Long is in the audience

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 3/30/06

163

1

today.

And most of our discussions have been

2

very preliminary, actually, just figuring out

3

whether -- whether this could work, you know,

4

having a social services campus at the Old Maui

5

High School.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

7

until now?

8

at placing over there?

9

MR. ANDAYA:

And what has transpired up

What is the Administration looking

Well, at -- right now, we are looking at

10

perhaps a substance abuse kind of, you know,

11

facilities, there.

12

still trying to figure out, like, what kind of

13

needs and what kind of -- what kind of services

14

could fit, you know, would be a good fit for

15

that area.

We are still trying -- we're

16

For instance, you know, we wouldn't

17

want -- I mean, we wouldn't to put an early

18

childhood center next to a substance abuse, you

19

know, facility.

20

things that we are trying to -

21

trying to determine what would work for that

22

campus.

23

So those are the kinds of
we are still

And so that's the reason why we wanted

24

to use part of the moneys to do a conceptual, do

25

some conceptual plans, do some planning and
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
afc: (808)524-2090 Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 3/30/06

1

2

164

whatnot.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Just I would encourage

3

the Administration to make sure you network with

4

the community in that area/ because of the site

5

being -- it's a historic site as well/ and of

6

course a lot of people have passed through those

7

halls/ that old high school.

8

comments.
Thank you.

9

10

So/ just my

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you/ Mr. Molina.
And again/ we will provide for a written

11
12

response to the specific parameters that they

13

want to set up for that social -- social service

14

campus.

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares/ followed by Mr. Hokama/

15

16

17

again.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah/ on the next line/ Maui

18

Family Support Services/ the 50/000.

19

going to hear from them what it is that this is?

20

It seems they were getting/ through the GRC/

21

before/ as I recall/ a grant.

22
23

24

MS. STEBBINS:

Are we

No/ they get funding for a different

program from the GRC.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Oh/ a different one.

Okay.

25
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MS. STEBBINS:

Yeah.

This is a -- this would be a

2

newly funded program to subsidize Federal

3

funding.

4

infant -- who have infant and toddlers who need

5

child care.

It's for low income families for

6

Currently, they have 45 people on their

7

wait list, and so that's the reason for the new

8

line item.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair, maybe we could ask

10

for more information about this particular

11

program since it does seem like it's different.
I -- I am going to assume that we are

12
13

going to hear from Ohana Makamae tonight in Hana

14

and they will explain to us what -- what it is

15

that they are trying to do.
And then the Women Helping Women

16
17

increase, is that

18

for?

19
20

MS. STEBBINS:

- do you know what that's

It's basically for operational costs,

for increased costs, utilities.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

All right.

Thank you.

And just for clarification on the

23

Women Helping Women, it's not an expansion

24

function, it's an operational function?

25

MS. STEBBINS:

Correct.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman, thank you for giving me

another opportunity in this area.
Back to that social services campus, is

5

6

this something similar to what Maui Memorial

7

Hospital, in partnership with the Cameron

8

Center, is trying to also accomplish in Central

9

Maui?

10

Is this something very similar,

Mr. Andaya?

11

CHAIR KANE:

Deputy, are you prepared to respond?

12

MR. ANDAYA:

I am

13

14
15

are being

I am not familiar with what they

- what is being proposed.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

They are -- they -- oh, excuse

me, Mr. Andaya.
They are looking at trying to move

16
17

forward a concept for integrated medical and

18

social services.

19

use the word campus, too.

20

Police Station, that Cameron Center area, where

21

MEO is, the hospitals, and whatnot, for a, you

22

know, integrated program that might make sense

23

where related activities or agencies can help

24

one another in close proximity instead of being

25

very distant apart.

And just coincidentally, they
By our Central Maui

Just curious to see if this
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something very similar, just at the Old Maui

1

1S

2

High School site.

3

MR. ANDAYA:

Councilmember, it does sound like it's

4

similar.

What

- what we have found is that

5

there's a great need.

6

non-profits, a lot of our non-profit agencies,

7

there's a great need for space.

8

instance, when people heard that, you know, that

9

we were thinking about doing this Old Maui High

I guess a lot of our

And so, for

10

School project, I mean, there were a lot of

11

non-profits that came to us and asked us, you

12

know, if we could be put on a list.

13

So it would be

14

would say, and I think

15

it -- it would complement that -- that facility,

16

you know, if it's built.

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

it would be similar, I
I think, you know,

Thank you.

And one last question.

18

Is it Executive

19

Ordered to us, that Maui High School site, or

20

has it been turned over in fee to the County of

21

Maui?

22

MR. ANDAYA:

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

MR. ANDAYA:

25

It was Executive Order.

Uh-huh.

It's still by Executive Order.
And we did amend the Executive

Order to include social services.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So what is the full parameter of

permitted use, Mr. Andaya?

3

MR. ANDAYA:

Social services, at this point.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

MR. ANDAYA:

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just social services.

Social services.
There's no community or

7

educational r or anything, it's just social

8

service, period?

9

MR. ANDAYA:

Social services, yes.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

MR. ANDAYA:

What did you amend it from?

It was agriculture, educational

12

can't remember.

13

lines.

14

education I believe.

15

CHAIR KANE:

I

It was something along those

Education -- it was agriculture and

Mr. Hokama, if it would help understand

16

the EO, as it currently -- as its current

17

status, we will make that we have a request to

18

have a copy of that forwarded to Committee so

19

you can peruse and understand.

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah, thank you, Chairman,

21

because I had thought we had -- try to expand

22

the permit --

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Yes.
-- permitted uses to glve us

flexibility instead of narrowing it further, so
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1

that we are kind of stuck and we can only do one

2

or nothing kind of mentality, which is kind of

3

foolish to me.

4
5

CHAIR KANE:

We will make that request with staff to

get that.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Members, again, the Chair is aware of

8

the time.

9

the tunnel.

We are at the -- close to the end of

Substance Abuse Programs, Members.

10

We

11

have the 12,000 additional added to the 738 for

12

a request of 750, plus we have two level

13

requests from previous programs under line item.

14

Any questions in this area?
Seeing none, Members, the final item --

15
16

or excuse me, the two final items, we have the

17

Youth Center request, which is a $1.75 million.

18

It's a level request from last Fiscal Year -- or

19

excuse me this current Fiscal Year.
And then finally, under Youth Programs,

20
21

you have $150,000, and then additional line item

22

requests including two programs that are

23

requesting for modest increases of 30,000 and

24

20,000, respectively for MEO Youth Bank and the

25

Big Brothers/Big Sisters of Maui.
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1

Any questions in this area, Members?

2

Seeing none --

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Chair.

Yes, Ms. Tavares, go ahead.
I just, for additional

6

information, if we could get a report on the

7

Project Graduation Programs that's -- I think

8

the Volunteer Center is administering that.

9

I want to know, since we are coming up on

10

graduation, have all the schools applied?
Maybe, Wendy, you know already.

11

12
13

14

And

MS. STEBBINS:

I don't know at this time, but we

will -- we will get you the report.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, because, Mr. Chairman,

15

it was a little odd that I had to tell two

16

schools about it.

17

no outreach or they expect the schools to read

18

our budget or whatever.

19

to know that this money was made available for

20

helping with that Project Graduation, which I

21

feel is a very important project in our County.

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

Thank you.

Members, any final questions in all of

24

25

But I want the schools

Thank you.

22

23

That I -- you know, there was

these areas?
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One note I will make! Members! you

1
2

received a previous communication regarding the

3

Humane Society's proviso in the Animal

4

Management Program.

5

training issue that we imposed a proviso on

6

them.

If you recall! it was a

7

The communication came back that it's

8

not that they can't! or they won't! it's that

9

they can't complete that.

So I wanted to make a

10

note of that! and we will take care of that at

11

some point to provide them the adjustment so

12

they can get their training needs taken care of

13

to comply with maybe an amended proviso.
But that's something that we will be in

14
15

communication with the Administration on that.

16

So I wanted to bring that to head so you folks

17

are aware that we are aware of it as well.
Finally! Members! I want to thank

18
19

Mr. Andaya and Ms. Stebbins! Mr. Okubo! as well

20

as Mr. Tanaka, for being here this morning, or

21

this afternoon! now.
Members, I am going to take a short

22
23

recess, and that way we can provide you

24

instruction on how we are going to continue

25

through this.

If we -- if we adjourn for today,
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1

we start fresh on Monday, versus if we recess

2

and then reconvene, we can go right into the

3

continued discussion on the grants.
So we will take a recess for five

4

5

minutes to make that determinations on how we

6

proceed.
Thank you very much, again, Mr. Andaya.

7

8

Appreciate your presence here.

This Committee is in recess for five

9

10

Thank you.

minutes, so Members, stay close, please (Gavel.)

11

RECESS:

12:29 p.m.

12

RECONVENE:

12:35 p.m.

13

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

14

reconvened.

15

recess.

Okay.

Members, we are

Thank you for that very brief

Again, we have our meeting in Hana as

16
17

scheduled for this evening; therefore, we will

18

be -- Members, after consulting with Corporation

19

Counsel and Staff, we are going to go ahead and

20

adjourn today's meeting, and then Monday morning

21

we are going to pick up where we are leaving

22

off.

23

Housing and Human Concerns area, and we are

24

going to continue now on to our next area, which

25

would be for the OED, Office of Economic

We have completed the grants for the

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters,
Ofc:

(808)524-2090

Fax:

Inc.

(808)524-2596

BF 3/30/06

1

173

Development.
We are going to pick up with CIP once we

2
3

complete this, so we may be -

4

little behind, but again, Members, we are going

5

to try and keep -- so we don't jump back and

6

forth into different areas.

7

Let's finish it up, get through it.

We started grants.

You have the weekend or this afternoon

8
9

we are falling a

and the weekend to peruse your documents that

10

have been received by Mr. Ginoza, and if there's

11

any questions in particular that are burning for

12

you, you can in advance pose those questions In

13

writing, and that way, we can even move a little

14

quicker.

15

discussed, the Chair will not prevent that from

16

occurring.

But if there's things that need to be

So, Members, that's what we are going to

17
18

do, without objections, Members.

19

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.

(excused:

MA)

20
21

DEFER pending further discussion.

ACTION:

22

23

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So, we are going to be adjourning

24

for today.

So, as we do it every day, Members,

25

on Monday, we will continue with where we left
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1

off.

Tonight we are in Hana, at the Helene

2

Hall, and that meeting starts at 6:00 -- six

3

o'clock.
And, Members, for April 3rd, which is

4

5

next week, Monday, I believe, we are at 6:30 at

6

the Kahului Community Center, Main Hall.

7

April 4th is six o'clock at Mitchell Pauole, and

8

on April 6 we are at the Lanai Community Center

9

Social Hall, and that meeting is scheduled for

10

6:00 p.m.
The ClP area, Members, we'll pick up and

11
12

glve you a heads up where we are at once we

13

start wrapping up on the grants area, so we

14

should be okay.
Members, with that, any announcements

15
16

before we adjourn for this afternoon?
Those of you flying, we'll see you

17
18

there.

19

drive carefully.

20

(Gavel. )

21

Those of you who are driving, please
This meeting is adjourned.

12:36 p.m.

ADJOURN:

22
23

24

25
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1

I, CHARI L. POSSELL, Certified Shorthand

2
3

Reporter, State of Hawaii, do hereby certify

4

that the proceedings were taken down by me in

5
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6

typewriting under my supervision; that the

7
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8
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9
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11
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